
Lesson 1 Урок 1
The noun Существительное

A noun represents the name of 
something: a person, place, thing, or idea.

Существительное обозначает название 
чего-то или кого-то: человека, места, 
вещи или идеи.

man человек
tree дерево
dog собака
fish рыба
lamp лампа
eye глаз
night ночь
song песня
The indefinite article “a” or “an” Неопределенный артикль «а» или «an»
We use the indefinite article “a” or “an” 
before a noun that can be counted (a 
count noun).
We do not use these articles before a 
noun that cannot be counted (a non - 
count noun).

Неопределенный артикль «a» 
или «an» употребляется перед 
существительными, которые можно 
посчитать (исчисляемыми).
Артикли не употребляются перед 
существительными, которые нельзя 
посчитать (неисчисляемыми).

We use the article “a” before a noun that 
starts with a consonant. 
The following letters are consonants: b, c, 
d, f, g, h, j, k, l, m, n, p, q, r, s, t, v, w, x, y, 
z.

Артикль «a» употребляется перед 
существительными, которые 
начинаются с согласных: b, c, d, f, g, h, 
j, k, l, m, n, p, q, r, s, t, v, w, x, y, z.

a boy мальчик
a girl девочка
a man мужчина
a king король
a queen королева
a lamp лампа
We use the article “an” before a noun that 
starts with a vowel. 
The following letters are vowels: a, e, i, o, 
u.

Артикль «an» употребляется 
перед существительными, которые 
начинаются с гласных: a, e, i, o, u.

an aunt тетя
an eye глаз



an island остров
an orange апельсин
an uncle дядя
an hour час
The word “hour” starts with the 
consonant h, but it sounds like it starts 
with a vowel (“our”), so we use the article 
“an” before it.

Слово «hour» начинается с согласной 
h ,но, похоже, что оно начинается 
с гласной («our»), поэтому мы 
используем перед ним артикль «an».

a university университет
a European европейский
In the word “European”, the vowel e 
sounds like the consonant y. Likewise, 
the word university sounds like it starts 
with a consonant, so we use the article 
“a” before these words.

В слове «European» («европейский») 
гласная e звучит как согласная у. 
Также кажется, что слово «university» 
(«университет») начинается с 
согласной, поэтому мы используем 
перед ними артикль «a».

Singular and Plural Единственное и множественное число 
имён существительных

Plural form is usually achieved by adding 
an s to the singular form of a noun. 
If the noun ends with f, k, p, t or th, then 
the plural s is pronounced as /s/ (as in 
“books”).
 
For the plural of nouns ending in “ch”, “s”, 
“sh” or “x” see Lesson 2

Форма множественного числа 
образуется путем добавления 
s к форме единственного числа 
существительного.  
Если существительное оканчивается 
на f, k, p, t или th, то окончание 
множественного числа -s произносится 
как /с/ в слове «books» («книги»).
 
Образование множественного числа 
существительных, оканчивающихся на 
ch, s, sh или x, см. в Уроке 2.

Singular Единственное число
a book книга
a map карта
a roof крыша
a month месяц
an aunt тетя
Plural Множественное число
books книги
maps карты
roofs крыши
months месяцы
aunts тети
If the noun ends with any other letter, then 
the plural s is pronounced as in “bags”.

Если существительное оканчивается 
на любую другую букву, то окончание 
множественного числа -s произносится 
как /з/ в слове «bags» («сумки»).

Singular Единственное число
a bag сумка



a girl девочка
a room комната
a chair стул
a pen ручка
an uncle дядя
Plural Множественное число
bags сумки
girls девочки
rooms комнаты
chairs стулья
pens ручки
uncles дяди
If the noun ends with ch, sh, s, or x, 
then we add an “es” to achieve the plural 
form, instead of an s. The plural “es” is 
pronounced as in “boxes”.

Если существительное оканчивается 
на ch, sh, s или x, то для обозначения 
множественного числа вместо -s 
добавляется -es и произносится как [iz] 
в слове «boxes» 

Singular Единственное число
a bus автобус
a box коробка
a brush щетка
a dress платье
a match спичка
Plural Множественное число
buses автобусы
boxes коробки
brushes щетки
dresses платья
matches спички
We also add the plural “es” to nouns that 
end with o.

Окончание множественного числа 
-es добавляется к существительным, 
оканчивающимся на o.

Singular Единственное число
a tomato помидор
Plural Множественное число
tomatoes помидоры
Note: The indefinite articles “a” and “an” 
are not used with nouns in plural form.

Примечание: неопределенные 
артикли «а» и «an» не употребляются с 
существительными во множественном 
числе.

Singular (with an article) Единственное число (с артиклем)
a boy

a girl
a bus
an uncle
Plural (without an article) Множественное число (без артикля)



boys
girls
buses
uncles
Likewise, these articles are not used with 
singular, non - count nouns.

Аналогично, эти артикли не 
употребляются с существительными 
в единственном числе и 
неисчисляемыми существительными.

water вода
sand песок
The definite article “the” Определенный артикль «the»
We use the definite article “the” before a 
noun, when the noun refers to a specific 
person, place, thing, or idea.

Определенный артикль 
«the» употребляется перед 
существительным, когда оно относится 
к конкретным: человеку, месту, вещи 
или идее.

the boy мальчик
the girl девочка
the room комната
the box коробка
the match спичка
the boys мальчики
the girls девочки
the rooms комнаты
the boxes коробки
the matches спички
Note: The article “the” can be used 
before any noun, whether singular, plural, 
feminine, masculine, or gender - neuter.

Примечание: артикль «the» 
может употребляться с любыми 
существительными: единственного 
или множественного числа, женского, 
мужского или среднего рода.

Masculine, singular Мужской род, единственное число
the boy
Feminine, singular Женский род, единственное число
the girl
Masculine, plural Мужской род, множественное число
the boys
Feminine, plural Женский род, множественное число
the girls
Object, singular Средний род, единственное число
the room
Object, plural Средний род, множественное число
the rooms
Gender in the English language Род в английском языке



Regarding gender, English nouns can be:
1. masculine, for male beings.
2. feminine, for female beings.
3. common, for both male and female 
(student, doctor)
4. neuter, mostly for inanimate objects 

Род английских существительных 
может быть: 
1. мужской, для существ мужского 
пола; 
2. женский, для существ женского 
пола; 
3. общий, для мужчин и женщин 
(студент, врач);
4. средний, в основном, для 
неодушевленных предметов.

Masculine nouns Существительные мужского рода
a king король
a man мужчина
an uncle дядя
a boy мальчик
Feminine nouns Существительные женского рода
a qeen королева
a woman женщина
an aunt тетя
a girl девочка
Gender - common nouns Существительные общего рода
a dancer танцор
a singer певец
a teacher учитель
a student студент
Gender - neuter nouns Существительные среднего рода
a lamp лампа

a pen ручка
a map карта
a tree дерево

Lesson 2 Урок 2
Vocabulary Словарь
orange апельсин
coat пальто
ice cream мороженое
English английский
bone кость
teach учить

dress (v) одевать



dress (n) платье
Note: The word “dress” can be used both 
as a noun (a type of clothes) or a verb 
(to put on clothes).

Примечание: слово «dress» может 
употребляться в качестве как 
существительного (тип одежды), так и 
глагола (надевать одежду).

brush (v) чистить щеткой
brush (n) щётка
shoe туфля
go идти
apple яблоко
coffee кофе
juice сок
tea чай
wear носить (одежду)
pants брюки
shirt рубашка
sell продавать
I я
you ты
he он
she она
it он, она, оно (о предметах и животных)
we мы
they они
write писать
eat есть
speak говорить
read читать
drink (v) пить
drink (n) напиток
buy покупать
letter письмо
banana банан
book книга
water вода
cake торт
milk молоко
hat шляпа
Subject pronouns Личные местоимения в именительном 

падеже
Singular Единственное число
I я
you ты
he он
she она
it он, она, оно (о предметах и животных)
Plural Множественное число



we мы
you вы
they они
Note: The pronoun “it” is gender - neuter, 
and is used for objects, animals, and 
concepts. The plural of “it” is “they”.
The word “I” is always capitalized.

Примечание: местоимение «it» («Он, 
она, оно») относится к среднему роду 
и используется для обозначения 
объектов, животных и понятий. Формой 
множественного числа «it» является 
«they» («они»).
Слово «I» («я») всегда пишется с 
заглавной буквы.

The verb Глагол
A verb represents an action or 
condition.

Глагол обозначает действие или 
состояние.

write писать
eat есть
speak говорить
read читать
drink пить
buy покупать
In English, each sentence must include a 
verb.
There are two types of verbs: 
1. Pure main verbs
2. Auxiliary verbs: be, do, have (which 
may also act like main verb)

В английском языке каждое 
предложение должно включать глагол.
Есть два типа глаголов:
1. Смысловые
2. Вспомогательные: be, do, have 
(которые также могут выступать в роли 
смысловых глаголов).

In this lesson, we will look at common 
main verbs only (Present Tense).

В этом уроке мы рассмотрим только 
смысловые глаголы (в настоящем 
времени).

I write an email Я пишу электронное письмо.
I eat a banana Я ем банан.
I read a book Я читаю книгу.
I drink water Я пью воду.
Note: The indefinite article “a” or “an” 
is used only before a count noun. In 
the sentence “I drink water,” the word 
“water” is a non - count noun. 

Important! Usually, in English the subject 
comes before the predicate.

Примечание: неопределенный артикль 
«a» или «an» используется только 
перед исчисляемым существительным. 
В предложении «I drink water» («Я 
пью воду») существительное «вода» 
неисчисляемое. 
Важно! В английском языке 
подлежащее, как правило, стоит перед 
сказуемым.

I eat a cake Я ем торт.

You drink milk Вы пьете молоко. 
He buys a hat Он покупает шляпу.
She sells oranges Она продает апельсины.
We wear coats Мы носим пальто.



You speak French Вы говорите по-французски.
They like ice-cream Они любят мороженое.
In the third-person singular (both 
masculine and feminine), in Present 
Tense, we add an s to the verb. 
Note: Each sentence starts with a capital 
letter.

В форме третьего лица единственного 
числа (мужского и женского рода) 
настоящего времени к глаголу 
прибавляется окончание -s.  
Примечание: каждое предложение 
начинается с заглавной буквы.

He drinks water Он пьет воду.
She speaks English Она говорит по-английски.
It eats bones Оно ест кости.
Note: We use the pronoun “it” instead of 
“he” or “she”, when referring to animals.

Примечание: местоимение «it» 
употребляется вместо «he» или «she», 
когда речь идет о животных.

In the third - person singular, if a verb 
ends with “ch”, “s”, or “sh”, we add 
the syllable “es”. This consonant “s” is 
pronounced as /s/ in “books”.
The same rule applies to the plural of 
nouns ending with those consonants in 
the singular. 

Если глагол оканчивается на ch, s или 
sh, то в форме 3-го лица ед. числа 
прибавляется слог es, в котором 
согласная s произносится как [с] в 
слове «books».  
Это же правило применяется к 
форме мн. числа существительных, 
оканчивающихся на ch, s или sh в 
единственном числе.

He teaches English Он преподает английский.
She brushes a shoe Она чистит обувь.
She dresses Emily Она одевает Эмили.
In the third-person singular, if a verb ends 
with an o, we add an “es”.  

Если глагол оканчивается на o, то в 
форме 3-го лица единственного числа 
прибавляется es.

He goes Он идет.
She goes Она идет.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
I eat a cake.
I eat an orange
I eat apples
I eat a banana
I eat ice cream
You drink water
You drink coffee
You drink juice
You drink tea
You drink milk
She buys a coat
She buys cakes
She buys a book
She buys apples
She buys a dress



He wears a hat
He wears shoes
He wears a coat
He wears pants
He wears a shirt
We sell oranges
We sell cakes
We sell books
We sell hats
We sell bananas

Lesson 3 Урок 3
Vocabulary Словарь
yes да
no нет
not не
to к
do делать
supper ужин
breakfast завтрак
lunch ланч
dinner обед
egg яйцо
hospital больница
school школа
prison тюрьма
synagogue синагога
church церковь
mosque мечеть
mall торговый центр
football футбол
basketball баскетбол
handball гандбол
chess шахматы
French французский
German немецкий
Italian итальянский
Spanish испанский

newspaper газета
magazine журнал
Internet интернет



blog блог
website веб-сайт
comedy комедия
tragedy трагедия
play (n) спектакль
story рассказ
does делает
play (v) играть
beer пиво
learn учить
rice рис
bake печь
bread хлеб
sing петь
song песня
wine вино
tennis теннис
answer ответ
question вопрос
Present Tense – negative form Настоящее время - отрицательная 

форма
We make the negative form, by adding 
“do not” before the verb.

Отрицательная форма образуется 
путем добавления «do not» («не») 
перед глаголом.

I eat breakfast Я завтракаю.
I do not eat breakfast Я не завтракаю.
I go to school Я хожу в школу.
I do not go to school Я не хожу в школу.
You speak English Вы говорите по-английски.
You do not speak English Вы не говорите по-английски.
In the third - person singular (“he, she, 
it”), we make the negative form by adding 
“does not” before the verb. The “-s” or 
“-es” at the end of the verb is dropped.

Отрицательная форма глагола 3-го 
лица ед. числа (с местоимениями «he, 
she, it») образуется путем добавления 
«does not» («не») перед глаголом. 
Окончание «-s» или «-es» в конце 
глагола отбрасывается. 

He plays football Он играет в футбол.
He does not play football Он не играет в футбол.

She writes a story Она пишет рассказ.
She does not write a story Она не пишет рассказ.
We drink beer Мы пьем пиво.
We do not drink beer Мы не пьем пиво.
You learn French Вы изучаете французский.
You do not learn French Вы не изучаете французский.
They read a book Они читают книгу.
They do not read a book Они не читают книгу.



Present Tense – interrogative form Настоящее время - вопросительная 
форма

We make the interrogative form, by 
adding “do” at the beginning of the 
sentence.

Вопросительная форма образуется 
путем добавления «do» в начале 
предложения.

I drink milk Я пью молоко.
Do I drink milk? Я пью молоко?
You eat rice Вы едите рис.
Do you eat rice? Вы едите рис?
In the third-person singular (he, she, it), 
we make the interrogative form, by adding 
“does” at the beginning of the sentence. 
The s or es at the end of the verb are 
dropped

Вопросительная форма глагола 3-го 
лица ед. числа (с местоимениями «he, 
she, it») образуется путем добавления 
«does» в начале предложения. 
Окончание -s или -es в конце глагола 
отбрасывается. 

He bakes bread Он печет хлеб.
Does he bake bread? Он печет хлеб?
She sings a song Она поет песню.
Does she sing a song? Она поет песню?
We drink wine Мы пьем вино.
Do we drink wine? Мы пьем вино?
You play tennis Вы играете в теннис.
Do you play tennis? Вы играете в теннис?
They answer questions Они отвечают на вопросы
Do they answer questions? Они отвечают на вопросы?
Questions and answers Вопросы и ответы

Do you drink water? Вы пьете воду?
No, I do not drink water. Нет, я не пью воду.
I drink milk. Я пью молоко.
Do you eat bananas? Вы едите бананы?
No, I do not eat bananas. Нет, я не ем бананы.
I eat oranges. Я ем апельсины.
Do you learn French? Вы изучаете французский?
No, I do not learn French. Нет, я не изучаю французский.
I learn Spanish. Я изучаю испанский.
Do you play football? Вы играете в футбол?
No, I do not play football. Нет, я не играю в футбол.
I play tennis. Я играю в теннис.
Do you eat bread? Вы едите хлеб?
Yes, I eat bread. Да, я ем хлеб.
Do you write letters? Вы пишете письма?
Yes, I write letters. Да, я пишу письма.
Do you teach English? Вы преподаете английский?
Yes, I teach English. Да, я преподаю английский.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.



You eat breakfast
You eat supper
You eat lunch
You eat dinner
You eat eggs
He goes to school
He goes to hospital
He goes to prison
He goes to synagogue
He goes to church
We do not play football
We do not play basketball
We do not play handball
We do not play tennis
We do not play chess
She learns French
She learns German
She learns English
She learns Spanish 
Do they read newspapers?
Do they read magazines?
Do they read comedies?
Do they read tragedies?
Do they read books?

Lesson 4 Урок 4
Vocabulary Словарь
fruit фрукт
vegetable овощ
animal животное
dancer танцор
farmer фермер
baker пекарь
pear груша
grape виноград
peach персик
melon дыня
potato картофель
tomato помидор
cucumber огурец
onion лук



pea горох
lion лев
tiger тигр
bear медведь
cat кошка
dog собака
am 1-е л. ед. ч. наст. вр. изъявительного 

наклонения от вспомогат. гл. to be 
(«быть»)

a неопределённый артикль
boy мальчик
are 2-е л. ед. ч. и мн. ч. наст. вр. от 

вспомогат. гл. to be («быть»)
girl девочка
is 3-е л. ед. ч. наст. вр. изъявительного 

наклонения от вспомогат. гл. to be 
(«быть»)

man мужчина
woman женщина
parents родители
men мужчины
women женщины
elephant слон
city город
country страна
continent континент
mountain гора
river река
driver водитель
teacher учитель
student учащийся
The verb “be” Глагол «to be»
The verb “be” is used to indicate a state.
As Hamlet said: “To be or not to be…”

Глагол to be («быть») используется для 
обозначения состояния. Как говорил 
Гамлет: «To be or not to be…» («Быть 
или не быть...»)

Conjugation of the verb “be” in the 
present tense

Спряжение глагола to be в настоящем 
времени

I am я
you are ты
he is он
she is она
it is он/ она/ оно
we are мы
you are вы
they are они



Note: The verb “am” follows the pronoun 
“I”. The verb “are” follows the pronouns 
“you”, “we”, and “they”. The verb “is” 
follows the pronouns “he”, “she”, and “it”.

Примечание: глагол «am» следует 
за местоимением «I». Глагол «are» 
следует за местоимениями «you», 
«we» и «they». Глагол «is» следует за 
местоимениями «he», «she» и «it».

I am a girl Я девочка.
You are a man Вы мужчина.
He is a boy Он мальчик.
She is a woman Она женщина.
We are parents Мы родители.
You are men Вы мужчины.
They are women Они женщины.
It is a book Это книга.
It is an elephant Это слон.
Note: The words “is” and “are” can also 
follow nouns. For example: “New York is 
a city”.

Примечание: глаголы «is» и 
«are» могут также следовать за 
существительными. Например: «New 
York is a city». («Нью-Йорк - это город».)

Great Britain is a country Великобритания – это страна.
Asia is a continent Азия – это континент. 
Mount Everest is a mountain Эверест – это гора.
The Amazon River is a river Амазонка – это река.
Doug is a driver Дуг водитель.
Emily is a teacher Эмили учитель.
Dan is a student. Дэн студент.
Oranges are fruit Апельсины - это фрукты.
Potatoes are vegetables Картофель - это овощ.
Lions are animals Львы – это животные.
Note: In English, we do not say, “I boy”. 
Instead, we say, “I am a boy”.

Примечание: в английском языке не 
говорят: «I boy». («Я мальчик»). Вместо 
этого говорят: «I am a boy».

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
He is a driver
He is a dancer
He is a farmer
He is a baker
He is a teacher
Oranges are fruit
Pears are fruit.
Grapes are fruit
Peaches are fruit
Melons are fruit
Potatoes are vegetables
Tomatoes are vegetables
Cucumbers are vegetables
Onions are vegetables



Peas are vegetables
Lions are animals
Tigers are animals
Bears are animals
Cats are animals
Dogs are animals
They are girls
They are boys
They are men
They are women
They are students

Lesson 5 Урок 5
Vocabulary Словарь
film star кинозвезда
dentist дантист
optician оптик
electrician электрик
grocer бакалейщик
greengrocer зеленщик
barman бармен
tailor портной
shoemaker сапожник
leader руководитель
cashier кассир
technician техник
doctor доктор
sculptor скульптор
president президент
worker работник
musician музыкант
pianist пианист
singer певец
painter художник
writer писатель
nurse медсестра
sailor моряк
waiter официант
typist машинистка
journalist журналист
dealer торговец



postman почтальон
policeman полицейский
secretary секретарь

dressmaker портниха
importer Импортер
exporter экспортер
actor актер
barber парикмахер
The verb “be” – negative form Глагол «to be» - отрицательная форма
I am not Я не
You are not Ты не
He is not Он не
She is not Она не
It is not Он/ она/ оно не
We are not Мы не
You are not Вы не
They are not Они не
Note: In a negative sentence, we add the 
word “not” after the verb.

Примечание: в отрицательном 
предложении добавляется частица 
«not» после глагола.

I am a worker Я работник.
I am not a worker Я не работник.
You are a baker Вы пекарь.
You are not a baker Вы не пекарь.
He is a musician Он музыкант.
He is not a musician Он не музыкант.
She is a pianist Она пианист.
She is not a pianist Она не пианист.
We are drivers Мы водители.
We are not drivers Мы не водители.
You are singers Вы певцы.
You are not singers Вы не певцы.
They are painters Они художники.
They are not painters Они не художники.
Dan is a writer Дэн писатель.
Dan is not a writer Дэн не писатель.
Emily is a nurse Эмили медсестра.
Emily is not a nurse Эмили не медсестра.
The verb “be” – interrogative form Глагол «to be» - вопросительная 

форма
Am I? Я?
Are you? Ты?
Is he? Он?
Is she? Она?
Is it? Он/ она/ оно?
Are we? Мы?



Are you? Вы?
Are they? Они?
Note: In interrogative sentences, we 
change the order of the words. The verb 
comes before the subject.

Примечание: в вопросительных 
предложениях меняется порядок слов. 
Глагол предшествует подлежащему.

I am a teacher. Я учитель.
Am I a teacher? Я учитель?
You are a sailor. Вы моряк.
Are you a sailor? Вы моряк?
He is a waiter. Он официант.
Is he a waiter? Он официант?
She is a typist. Она машинистка.
Is she a typist? Она машинистка?
We are journalists. Мы журналисты.
Are we journalists? Мы журналисты?
You are drivers. Вы водители.
Are you drivers? Вы водители?
They are dealers. Они торговцы.
Are they dealers? Они торговцы?
Questions and answers Вопросы и ответы
Are you a teacher? Вы учитель?
No ,I am not. Нет, я не учитель.
I am a student. Я учащийся.
Are you a postman? Вы почтальон?
No ,I am not. Нет, я не почтальон.
I am a policeman. Я полицейский.
Are you a secretary? Вы секретарь?
No ,I am not. Нет, я не секретарь.
I am a dressmaker. Я портной
Are you an importer? Вы импортер?
No ,I am not. Нет, я не импортер.
I am an exporter. Я экспортер.
Is he an actor? Он актёр?
No ,he is not. Нет, он не актёр.
He is a musician. Он музыкант.
Is he a barber? Он парикмахер?
No ,he is not. Нет, он не парикмахер.
He is a gardener. Он садовник.
Is she a film star? Она кинозвезда?
No ,she is not. Нет, она не кинозвезда.
She is a singer. Она певица.
Is he a dentist? Он дантист?
No ,he is not. Нет, он не дантист.
He is an optician. Он оптик.
Is Dan a driver? Дэн водитель?
No ,he is not. Нет, он не водитель.
He is an electrician. Он электрик.



Is Mark a grocer? Марк бакалейщик?
No ,he is not. Нет, он не бакалейщик.
He is a greengrocer. Он зеленщик.
Is Doug a barman? Дуг бармен?
No ,he is not. Нет, он не бармен.
He is a waiter. Он официант.
Is this man a tailor? Этот мужчина портной?
No ,he is not. Нет, он не портной.
He is a shoemaker. Он сапожник.
Is this woman a secretary? Эта женщина секретарь?
No ,she is not. Нет, она не секретарь.
She is a singer. Она певица.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух.
Is he a leader?
Is he a dealer?
Is he a grocer?
Is he a greengrocer?
Is he an exporter?
Are you a soldier?
Are you a cashier?
Are you a technician?
Are you an optician?
Are you an electrician?
Dan is not a doctor
Dan is not an actor
Dan is not a sailor
Dan is not a tailor
Dan is not a sculptor
He is not a student
He is not a president
He is not a patient
He is not an agent
He is not a teacher
I am not a dentist
I am not typist
I am not chemist
I am not journalist
I am not tourist
Here are some common noun suffixes 
used to indicate professions.

Ниже приведен список наиболее 
распространенных суффиксов 
существительных для обозначения 
профессий.

The suffix “er” Суффикс -er
baker пекарь
barber парикмахер
dealer торговец



driver водитель
exporter экспортёр
gardener Садовник
leader руководитель
miner шахтер
painter художник
porter портье
publisher издатель
singer певец
teller издатель
waiter официант
worker работник
web designer веб-дизайнер
The suffix “or” Суффикс –or
actor актёр
collector собиратель
conductor дирижер
decorator декоратор
director директор
doctor доктор
editor редактор
governor губернатор
inspector инспектор
investor инвестор
professor профессор
sailor моряк
sculptor скульптор
tailor портной
translator переводчик
The suffix “ist” Суффикс –ist
artist артист
chemist химик
dentist дантист
economist экономист

guitarist гитарист
industrialist промышленник
journalist журналист
manicurist маникюрша
pianist пианист
scientist учёный
specialist специалист
tourist турист
typist машинистка
The suffix “ian” Суффикс -ian
civilian гражданское лицо
comedian комик



guardian опекун
historian историк
librarian библиотекарь
musician музыкант
pedestrian пешеход
politician политик
theologian Теолог
vegetarian вегетарианец
veterinarian ветеринар
The suffix “-man” for a man, or “-woman” 
for a woman..., or sometimes just 
“person”. Here are some examples:

Суффикс -man для мужчины или 
-woman для женщины, иногда просто 
-person. Вот несколько примеров:

barman бармен
businessman / businesswoman бизнесмен/ бизнесвумен
chairman председатель
congressman конгрессмен
councilman член совета
craftsman ремесленник
fireman пожарный
fisherman рыбак
policeman / policewoman полицейский/ женщина-полицейский
postman почтальон
salesman / salesperson продавец/ продавщица
sportsman спортсмен
statesman государственный деятель
watchman сторож
The suffix “ant” or “ent” Суффикс -ant или -ent
accountant бухгалтер
agent агент
assistant ассистент
attendant Обслуживающий
consultant консультант
correspondent корреспондент
immigrant иммигрант
merchant оптовый торговец
president президент
sergeant сержант
student учащийся

Lesson 6 Урок 6
Vocabulary Словарь
this этот, эта, это



that тот, та, то
pen ручка
pencil карандаш
brush щетка
star звезда
cloud облако
map карта
these эти
those те
horse лошадь
cow корова
eraser ластик
ruler линейка
bed кровать
chair стул
table стол
desk письменный стол
cell phone (US) ( mobile pone (UK)) сотовый/ мобильный телефон 
glass стакан
cup чашка
picture картина
on на
wall стена
broom метла
in в
room комната
monkey обезьяна
zoo зоопарк
flower цветок
bicycle велосипед
window окно
door дверь
gate ворота
scarf шарф
or или
bee пчела
fly летать
boot ботинок
The words “this” and “that” Местоимения «this» и «that»
The words “this” and “that” are followed 
by the verb “is”.
We use “this is”, when touching 
something or pointing to something 
nearby.

Местоимения this и that предшествуют 
глаголу is. This is употребляется при 
указании на предмет, находящийся 
вблизи.

This is a pen Это ручка.
This is a pencil Это карандаш.
This is a coat Это пальто.



This is a brush Это щётка.
We use “that is”, when pointing to 
something far away.

That is употребляется при указании на 
предмет, находящийся вдали.

That is a star То звезда.
That is a cloud То облако. 
That is a map То карта.
That is an egg То яйцо.
The word “these” is the plural form of 
“this”. 
The word “those” is the plural form of 
“that”.
These words are followed by the auxiliary 
verb “are”.

Формой множественного числа this 
является these.
Формой множественного числа that 
является those.
За ними следует глагол-связка are.

Note: The words “this”, “that”, “these”, 
and “those” are common for both the 
masculine and feminine, as well as for the 
neuter.

Примечание: указательные 
местоимения this, that, these и those 
употребляются со словами всех родов: 
мужского, женского и среднего.

Those are pencils То карандаши.
Those are stars То звезды.
These are maps Это карты.
These are brushes Это щетки.
This is a horse Это лошадь.
This is a cow Это корова.
That is a boy То мальчик.
That is a girl То девочка.
Those are eggs То яйца.
Those are pens То ручки.
This is a boy. Это мальчик.
That is a boy То мальчик.
These are boys Это мальчики.
Those are boys То мальчики.
Note: Pay attention to the difference 
between “This is a boy” and “This 
boy…”

Примечание: обратите внимание на 
разницу между «This is a boy» («Это 
мальчик») и «This boy…» («Этот 
мальчик...»)

The words “this”, “that”, “these”, and 
“those” - interrogative form

Вопросительная форма местоимений 
«this», «that», «these» и «those»

In an interrogative sentence, we change 
the order of the words. The verb appears 
before the subject.

В вопросительном предложении 
меняется порядок слов. Глагол 
ставится перед подлежащим.

This is a pen. Это ручка.
Is this a pen? Это ручка?
That is an eraser. То ластик.
Is that an eraser? То ластик?
These are horses. Это лошади.
Are these horses? Это лошади?
Those are cows. То коровы.
Are those cows? То коровы.



The words “this”, “that”, “these”, and 
“those” - negative form

Отрицательная форма «this», «that», 
«these» и «those»

In negative sentences, we add the word 
“not” after the verb.

В отрицательных предложениях 
добавляется частица «not» после 
глагола-связки.

This is a pen. Это ручка.
This is not a pen Это не ручка.
That is a ruler. То линейка.
That is not a ruler То не линейка.
The word “or” Союз «or»
The word “or” is used between two or 
more options.

Союз or («или») употребляется между 
двумя или более вариантами.

Is this a chair or a bed? Это стул или кровать?
It is a chair. Это стул.
Is this a table or a desk? Это обеденный или письменный стол?
It is a desk. Это письменный стол.
Is this an MP3 or a cell phone? Это MP3 или мобильный телефон?
It is an MP3. Это MP3.
Is that a glass or a cup? То стакан или чашка?
It is a glass. То стакан.
Is that an orange or an apple? То апельсин или яблоко?
It is an apple. То яблоко.
Is that a man or a woman? То мужчина или женщина?
It is a man. То мужчина.
The phrases “There is” and “There are” Обороты «There is» и «There are»
“There is” and “There are” indicate that 
something exists or is present.

Обороты there is и there are указывают 
на наличие лица или предмета.

We use “There is” to indicate something 
in the singular form.

There is указывает на наличие 
предмета в форме единственного 
числа.

There is a picture on the wall. На стене картина.
There is a broom in the room. В комнате метла.
Is there a map on the wall? На стене есть карта?
Is there a coat in the room? В комнате есть пальто?
We use “There are” to indicate something 
in the plural form.

There are указывает на наличие 
предмета в форме множественного 
числа.

There are books on the table. На столе книги.
Are there books on the table? На столе есть книги?
There are monkeys in the zoo. В зоопарке есть обезьяны?
Are there tigers in the zoo? В зоопарке есть тигры?
Questions and answers Вопросы и ответы
Is this a pencil? Это карандаш?
No ,this not a pencil. Нет, это не карандаш.
This is a pen. Это ручка.
Is this a book? Это книга?
No ,this is not a book. Нет, это не книга.



This is a magazine. Это журнал.
Is this a horse? Это лошадь?
No ,this is not a horse. Нет, это не лошадь.
This is a cow. Это корова.
Is this a cell phone? Это сотовый телефон?
No ,this is not a cell phone. Нет, это не сотовый телефон.
This is an MP3. Это MP3.
Is this an apple? Это яблоко?
No ,this is not an apple. Нет, это не яблоко.
This is an orange. Это апельсин.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
This is a pen
This is a notebook
This is a picture
This is a flower
This is a mountain
That is a desk
That is a chair
That is a cell phone
That is a table
That is a map
Is this a bicycle?
Is this a brush?
Is this a glass?
Is this a ruler?
Is this a broom?
This is not a window
This is not a door
This is not a gate
This is not a coat
This is not a scarf
Is that a dog or a cat?
Is that a bee or a fly?
Is that a ruler or an eraser?
Is that a pear or a peach?
Is that a boot or a shoe?

Lesson 7 Урок 7
Vocabulary Словарь
at в



in в
from от
of из
near около
under под
for для
behind за
between между
in front of перед
over над
many много
trees деревья
forest лес
cold холодный
night ночь
office офис
day день
piece кусок
garden сад
stand стоять
like подобно
present, gift подарок
sit сидеть
where где
drawer выдвижной ящик
box коробка
kitchen кухня
bathroom ванная
child ребенок
bedroom спальня
dining - room столовая
living - room гостиная
who кто
here здесь
there там
Mr Г-н (►Мистер)
Mrs Г-жа (►Миссис)
and и
Prepositions Предлоги
A preposition is a word that indicates a 
certain relationship, either between two 
nouns, or between a verb and a noun.

Предлог - служебное слово, 
выражающее отношение между 
двумя существительными или между 
глаголом и существительным.

on на
in в
at в
to к



from от
of из
near около
under под

for для
behind за
between между
in front of перед
over над
The preposition “on” Предлог on
The picture is on the wall Картина на стене.
The lamp is on the desk Лампа на столе.
The book is on the table Книга на столе.
The preposition “in” Предлог in
The lion is in the zoo Лев в зоопарке.
There are many trees in the forest В лесу много деревьев.
There is a boy in the room В комнате мальчик.
The preposition “at” Предлог at
I teach Spanish at school Я преподаю испанский в школе.
It is cold at night Ночью холодно.
The secretary is at the office Секретарь в офисе.
The preposition “to” Предлог to

He goes to school Он ходит в школу.
He writes a letter to his parents Он пишет письмо своим родителям.
Dan goes to the zoo Дэн ходит в зоопарк.
The preposition “from” Предлог from
I come from Los Angeles Я родом из Лос-Анджелеса
He takes the book from the table Он берет книгу со стола.
This bicycle is from Italy Этот велосипед из Италии.
The preposition “of” Предлог of
I drink a glass of water Я пью стакан воды.
He eats a piece of bread Он ест кусок хлеба.
The preposition “near” Предлог near
The garden is near the school Cад расположен возле школы.
The chair is near the window Стул стоит возле окна.
He stands near the door Он стоит у двери.
The preposition “under” Предлог under
The shoes are under the bed Обувь под кроватью.
The broom is under the table Метла под столом.
The pen is under the book Ручка под книгой.
The preposition “for” Предлог for
I like tea for breakfast Я люблю чай на завтрак.
This present is for Dan Этот подарок для Дэна.
The book is for you Книга для тебя.
The preposition “behind” Предлог behind



The coat is behind the door Пальто за дверью

The chairs are behind the desk Стулья за столом.
The preposition “between” Предлог between
The broom is between the chair and the 
desk

Метла между стулом и столом.

The picture is between the door and the 
window

Картина между дверью и окном.

The mall (shopping center) is between the 
school and the hospital

Торговый центр находится между 
школой и больницей.

The preposition “in front of” Предлог in front of
Dan sits in front of the teacher Дэн сидит перед учителем.
The teacher is in front of the classroom Учитель стоит перед классом.
The bicycle is in front of the hospital Велосипед находится перед 

больницей.
Question words Вопросительные слова
where? где?
who? кто?
what? что?
how? как?
The question word “where” Вопросительное слово «where»
Where is the book? Где книга?
The book is on the table. Книга на столе.
Where is the pen? Где ручка?
It is in the drawer. Она в выдвижном ящике.
Where is the pencil? Где карандаш?
It is near the box. Он около коробки.
Where is the broom? Где метла?
It is near the kitchen. Она около кухни.
Where is Emily? Где Эмили?
She is in the bathroom. Она в ванной.
Where is the child? Где ребенок?
He is in the bedroom. Он в спальне.
Where are the women? Где женщины?
They are in the dining-room. Они в столовой.
Where are the men? Где мужчины?
They are in the living-room. Они в гостиной.
Where is the picture? Где картина?
It is between the door and the window. Она между дверью и окном.
The question word “who” Вопросительное слово «who»
Who is here? Кто здесь?
Who is there? Кто там?
Who are you? Кто вы?
I am Doug. Я Дуг.
Who is he? Кто он?
He is Bob Brown. Он Боб Браун.
Who is this man? Кто этот мужчина?



He is Mr. Stevenson. Он г-н Стивенсон.
Who is this woman? Кто эта женщина?
She is Mrs. Stevenson. Она г-жа Стивенсон.
Who are these men? Кто эти мужчины?
They are Mr. Smith and Mr. Jones. Они г-н Смит и г-н Джонс.
Note: The word “Mr.” is an abbreviation 
of “Mister”. The word “Mrs.” is an 
abbreviation of “Mistress”, but it is 
pronounced “Misses”.

Примечание: аббревиатура «Mr.» 
происходит от «Mister» (господин). 
Аббревиатура «Mrs.» происходит от 
«Mistress» (госпожа), но произносится 
как «миссис».

The conjunction “and” Соединительный союз «and»
The conjunction “and” is used to connect 
two words or sentences.

Союз and («и») используется 
для соединения двух слов или 
предложений.

He is in the kitchen, and she is in the 
office.

Он на кухне, и она в офисе.

The book is on the table, and the pen is 
on the desk.

Книга лежит на столе, и ручка на 
письменном столе.

The boy and the girl are in the room. Мальчик и девочка находятся в 
комнате.

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
The lamp is near the table
The lamp is on the table
The lamp is under the table
The lamp is behind the table
The lamp is over the table
The garden is in front of the school
The pupil is in front of the teacher
The chair is in front of the desk.
The bicycle is in front of the hospital.
The broom is in front of the room
The shoes are under the bed
The shoes are in the drawer
The shoes are on the chair
The shoes are behind the table
The shoes are near the door
Who is he?
Who is this man?
Who is this girl?
Who is here?
Who is there?
Where are the children?
Where are the men?
Where are the musicians?
Where are the nurses?



Where are the women?

Lesson 8 Урок 8
Vocabulary Словарь
what что
lamp лампа
candle свеча
curtain занавеска
carpet ковер
camera камера
skirt юбка
sweater свитер
raincoat плащ
sock носок
jacket куртка
suit костюм
glove перчатка
blouse блузка
tie галстук
handkerchief носовой платок
clothes вещи
slipper тапочка
sandal сандалия
pajamas пижама
jeans джинсы
sleeves рукава
shorts шорты
director директор
assistant помощник
merchant оптовый торговец
town город
businessman бизнесмен
librarian библиотекарь
actress актриса
car машина
bus автобус
house дом
ship корабль
boat лодка
train поезд
cottage коттедж



castle замок
tower башня
palace дворец
The question word “what” Вопросительное слово «what»
Note: The question “What is this?” is 
answered with “This is…” or “It is…”
“What is that?” is answered with “That 
is…” or “It is…”

Примечание: на вопрос «What is 
this?» («Что это такое?») отвечают: 
«This is…» или «It is...» («Это...»). 
На вопрос «What is that?» («Что это?») 
отвечают: «That is…» или «It is…» 
(«Это ...»).

What is this? Что это?
This is a lamp. Это лампа.
What is this? Что это?
This is a candle. Это свеча.
What is this? Что это?
This is a curtain. Это занавеска.
What is this? Что это?
It is a carpet. Это ковер.
What is this? Что это?
It is a camera. Это камера.
The contractions “it’s” and “what’s” Сокращения «it’s» («это») и «what’s» 
The word “what’s” is the contracted form 
of “what is”, and the word “it’s” is the 
contracted form of “it is”. 
The i in “is” is replaced by an apostrophe.

«what’s» («что») - сокращенная форма 
от «what is», а «it’s» - сокращенная 
форма от «it is».
Буква i в «is» заменяется апострофом.

What's this? Что это?
It's a skirt. Это юбка.
What's this? Что это?
It's a sweater. Это свитер.
What's that? Что это?
It's a raincoat. Это плащ.
What's that? Что это?
It's a sock. Это носок.
What's that? Что это?
It's a jacket. Это куртка.
Note: The question “What are these?” is 
answered with “These are…”. 
“What are those?” is answered with 
“Those are…”.

Примечание: на вопрос «What are 
these?» («Что это?») отвечают: «These 
are…» («Это ...»).
На вопрос «What are those?» («Что 
это?») отвечают: «Those are…» («Это 
...»).

What are these? Что это?
These are suits. Это костюмы.
What are these? Что это?
These are gloves. Это перчатки.
What are these? Что это?
These are blouses. Это блузки.
What are those? Что это?



Those are ties. Это галстуки.
What are those? Что это?
Those are handkerchiefs. Это носовые платки.
Note: In some of the following examples, 
the phrase “What is…” is used to ask 
about a person’s profession. 

Примечание: в некоторых из 
следующих примеров фраза «What 
is…» означает «Кто...» и используется, 
чтобы спросить о профессии человека.

What is Dan? Кто Дэн?
Dan is a director. Дэн директор.
What is Emily? Кто Эмили?
She is an assistant. Она ассистент.
What are Doug and Johnny? Кто Дуг и Джонни?
They are merchants. Они оптовые торговцы.
What is New York? Что такое Нью-Йорк?
New York is a city. Нью-Йорк – это город.
What is France? Что такое Франция?
France is a country. Франция – это страна.
What is Europe? Что такое Европа?
Europe is a continent. Европа – это континент.
What is that man? Кто тот мужчина?
He is a businessman. Он бизнесмен.
What is that woman? Кто та женщина?
She is a librarian. Она библиотекарь.
What is that girl? Кто та девушка?
She is an actress. Она актриса.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
What is France?
It is a country
What is Italy?
It is a country
What is Germany?
It is a country
What is Spain?
It is a country
What is Portugal?
It is a country
What is this? It is a car
What is this? It is bus
What is this? It is train
What is this? It is ship
What is this? It is boat
What is that? It is a house
What is that? It is cottage
What is that? It is castle
What is that? It is tower
What is that? It is palace



What are these? These are jeans
What are these? These are trousers
What are these? These are gloves
What are these? These are sleeves
What are these? These are shorts
What are these? These are clothes
What are these? These are slippers
What are these? These are sandals
What are these? These are pajamas
What are these? These are shoes

Lesson 9 Урок 9
Vocabulary Словарь
how как
weather погода
today сегодня
old старый
building здание
open открывать
how many сколько
finger палец
hand рука
minute минута
hour час
month месяц
year год
meter метр
kilometer километр
cent цент
dollar доллар
want хотеть
times раз
how much сколько
weigh весить
five пять
plus плюс
six шесть
two два
three три
four четыре
minus меньше



one один
divide делить
how long как долго
heavy тяжелый
tall высокий (о человеке)
far далеко
seven семь
wide широкий
high высокий
large крупный
big большой
ladder лестница
Numbers Числа
one один
two два
three три
four четыре
five пять
six шесть
seven семь
eight восемь
nine девять
ten десять
Examples Примеры
I have one car У меня одна машина.
There are two beds in the room В комнате две кровати.
I eat three times a day Я ем три раза в день.
There are four weeks in a month В месяце четыре недели.
There are five fingers on one hand На одной руке пять пальцев.
There are six girls in the room В комнате шесть девочек.
There are seven days in a week В неделе семь дней.
There are eight pens in the box В коробке восемь ручек.
I buy nine books Я покупаю девять книг.
There are ten rooms in the palace Во дворце десять комнат.
The question word “how” Вопросительное слово «how»
The word “how” usually means “in what 
way”. However, when used together 
with certain other words, its meaning 
changes.

Слово «how» обычно означает «каким 
образом», но при употреблении 
совместно с некоторыми другими 
словами его значение меняется.

How many? Сколько?
How much? Сколько? Почём?
How long? (length) Сколько? (о длине)
How long? (time) Как долго?
How tall? Как высоко?
How heavy? Как тяжело?
How wide? Как широко?
How big? Какого размера?



How far? Как далеко?
How is that? Как это?
How is he? Как он?
How are you? Как дела?
How do you do? Как поживаете?
How is the weather today? Какая сегодня погода?
How old are you? Сколько вам лет?
How old is that building? Сколько лет этому зданию?
How do you like it? Как вам это нравится?
How do you open the window? Как открыть окно?
How do you go to school? Как вы ходите в школу?
The question phrases “how much” and 
“how many”

Вопросительные выражения «how 
much» и «how many»

We use “how many” with count nouns. How many («сколько») употребляется с 
исчисляемыми существительными

How many fingers are there in a hand? Сколько пальцев на руке?
How many days are there in a week? Сколько дней в неделе?
How many minutes are there in an hour? Сколько минут в часе?
How many months are there in a year? Сколько месяцев в году?
How many meters are there in one 
kilometer?

Сколько метров в одном километре?

How many cents are there in one dollar? Сколько центов в одном долларе?
How many blouses do you want? Сколько блузок вы хотите?
How many times a day do you eat? Сколько раз в день вы едите?
We use “how much” with non-count 
nouns.

How much («сколько») употребляется с 
неисчисляемыми существительными

How much is it? Сколько это стоит?
How much is this tie? Сколько стоит этот галстук?
How much do you want? Сколько вы хотите?
How much do you weigh? Сколько вы весите?
How much is five plus six? Сколько будет пять плюс шесть?
How much is two times three? Сколько будет дважды три?
How much is four minus one? Сколько будет четыре минус один?
How much is six divided by two? Сколько будет шесть разделить на 

два?
How much are these bananas? Сколько стоят эти бананы?
Here are some examples of adjectives 
that are used with the question word 
“how”.

Вот некоторые примеры 
прилагательных, употребляемых с 
«how» («как»).

How long is this room? Какой длины эта комната?
How heavy is the box? Какой тяжести эта коробка?
How tall are you? Какой у вас рост?
How far is Los Angeles from New York? Как далеко Лос-Анджелес от Нью-

Йорка?
How far is it to the zoo? Как далеко зоопарк?
How high is Mount Everest? Какой высоты гора Эверест?
Exercise Упражнение



Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
How do you do?
How do you open the window?
How do you go to school?
How do you speak English?
How do you like it?
How many hats do you want?
How many pencils do you want?
How many letters do you want?
How many oranges do you want?
How many magazines do you want?
How many chairs are there in the room?
How many students are there in the 
school?
How many meters are there in one 
kilometer?
How many pennies are there in one 
dollar?
How many hours are there in a day?
How much is six plus five?
How much is five times six?
How much is seven minus four?
How much is that car?
How much is a cup of tea?
How long is the room?
How wide is the door?
How high is the mountain?
How large is the hospital?
How big is the ladder?

Lesson 10 Урок 10
Vocabulary Словарь
my мой, моя, моё, мои
your твой, твоя, твоё, твои
his его
her её
our наш, наша, наше, наши
their их
its его
lace шнурок
cousin двоюродный брат, двоюродная сестра
brother брат



sister сестра
wife жена
smell запах, пахнуть
with с
nose нос
hear слышать
ear ухо
mouth рот
walk ходить
feet ноги
see видеть
eye глаз
feel чувствовать
whose чей, чья, чьё, чьи
umbrella зонт
stick палочка
clock часы
watch наручные часы
ring кольцо
glasses очки
son сын
daughter дочь
nephew племянник
uncle дядя
aunt тетя
niece племянница
husband муж
apron фартук
overall комбинезон
cardigan кардиган
Possessive adjectives Притяжательные прилагательные
A possessive adjective indicates 
possession by someone.

Притяжательные прилагательные 
обозначают
принадлежность чего-то кому-то.

my мой, моя, моё, мои
your твой, твоя, твоё, твои
his его
her её
its его
our наш, наша, наше, наши
your ваш, ваша, ваше, ваши
their их
Note: Possessive adjectives are 
followed by nouns.

Примечание: притяжательные 
прилагательные предшествуют 
существительным.

This is my dress Это мое платье.
This is your shirt Это ваша рубашка.



This is his hat Это его шляпа.
This is her skirt Это ее юбка.
These are our sandals. Это наши сандалии.
These are your shorts Это ваши шорты.
These are their laces Это их шнурки.
Note: The word “your” can indicate 
possession by a singular “you” or a plural 
“you”.

Примечание: «your» может указывать 
на 
принадлежность местоимению «you» 
(«ты, вы») в ед. числе или «you» 
(«вы») во мн. числе.

Who is he? Кто он?
He is my cousin. Он мой двоюродный брат.
Who is he? Кто он?
He is our brother. Он наш брат.
Who is she? Кто она?
She is their sister. Она их сестра.
Who are they? Кто они?
They are his brothers. Они его братья.
They are her sisters. Они ее сестры.
They are your cousins. Они ваши двоюродные братья/ сестры.
Is this your table? Это ваш стол?
No, it is not my table. Нет, это не мой стол.
Is this her chair? Это ее стул?
Yes, it is her chair. Да, это ее стул.
Is this his wife? Это его жена?
Yes, she is his wife. Да, она его жена?
I smell with my nose. Я нюхаю своим носом.
You hear with your ears. Вы слышите своими ушами.
He speaks with his mouth. Он говорит своим ртом.
She walks with her feet. Она ходит своими ногами.
We see with our eyes. Мы видим своими глазами.
They feel with their hands. Они осязают своими руками.
The question word “whose” Вопросительное слово «whose»
Whose umbrella is this? Чей это зонтик?
It is my umbrella. Это мой зонтик.
Whose stick is that? Чья это палочка?
It is your stick. Это ваша палочка.
Whose watch is it? Чьи это наручные часы?
It is his watch. Это его наручные часы.
Whose clock is it? Чьи это часы?
It is our clock. Это наши часы.
Whose ring is this? Чье это кольцо? 
It is her ring. Это ее кольцо.
Whose glasses are these? Чьи это очки?
These are their glasses. Это их очки.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 



This is my son
This is my daughter
This is my brother
This is my sister
This is my cousin
Is this your nephew?
Is this your uncle?
Is this your aunt?
Is this your niece?
Is this your husband?
Whose umbrella is that?
Whose broom is that?
Whose table is that?
Whose chair is that?
Whose picture is that?
This is your shirt
This is your apron
This is your overall
This is your cardigan
This is your dress
These are my sandals
These are your sandals
These are his sandals
These are our sandals
These are their sandals

Lesson 11 Урок 11
Vocabulary Словарь
have иметь, имею, имеешь, имеем, имеете, 

имеют 
has имеет
mother мать
father отец
friend друг
grandfather дедушка
grandmother бабушка
grandson внук
granddaughter внучка
family семья 
relative родственник
grandchildren внуки



I have У меня есть
some некоторый
salt соль
any какой-нибудь, сколько-нибудь
shelf полка
vase ваза
biscuit печенье
fork вилка
spoon ложка
plate тарелка
money деньги
time время
soup суп
food еда
boyfriend возлюбленный
girlfriend любимая девушка
brother-in-law зять, шурин
sister-in-law невестка, золовка
step mother мачеха
mother-in-law теща, свекровь
post cards открытки
diamond бриллиант
ticket билет
stamp марка
hobby хобби
butter масло
soap мыло
cheese сыр
flour мука
The verb “have” Глагол «have»
In this lesson, we will learn when “have” 
is used to indicate possession.
However, "have" may be used as an 
auxiliary verb.

В этом уроке мы узнаем, когда 
«have» («иметь») употребляется для 
обозначения владения.
Тем не менее, «have» может 
использоваться как вспомогательный 
глагол.

I have У меня есть
You have У тебя есть
He has У него есть
She has У нее есть
It has Он/ она/ оно имеет
We have У нас есть
You have У вас есть
They have У них есть
I have a brother У меня есть брат
You have a sister У вас есть сестра
He has a mother У него есть мать



She has a father У нее есть отец
We have a son У нас есть сын
You have friends У вас есть друзья
They have cousins У них есть двоюродные братья/ сестры
Note: In the third - person singular 
(all genders: masculine, feminine and 
neuter), we use “has” instead of “have”.

Примечание: в 3-м лице ед. числа 
(всех родов: мужского, женского 
и среднего) используется «has» 
(«имеет») вместо «have».

The verb “have” – interrogative form Вопросительная форма глагола «have»
In a question, we add “do” before the 
subject.

В вопросительном предложении 
добавляется «do» («делать») перед 
подлежащим.

Note: In the third - person singular 
(masculine, feminine and neuter), we add 
“does” instead of “do”.

Примечание: в 3-м лице ед. числа 
(мужского, женского и среднего рода) 
добавляется «does» вместо «do».

Conjugations of the verb “have” in 
interrogative form

Спряжение глагола «have» в 
вопросительной форме

Do I have? У меня есть?
Do you have? У тебя есть?
Does he have? У него есть?
Does she have? У нее есть?
Does it have? Он/ она/ оно имеет?
Do we have? У нас есть?
Do you have? У вас есть?
Do they have? У них есть?
Do I have a brother? У меня есть брат?
Do you have an uncle? У вас есть дядя?
Do I have an aunt? У меня есть тетя?
Does he have a son? У него есть сын?
Does she have a daughter? У нее есть дочь?
Do we have a nephew? У нас есть племянник?
Do you have relatives? У вас есть родственники?
Do they have grandchildren? У них есть внуки?
The verb “have” – negative form Отрицательная форма глагола «have»
In a negative sentence, we add the words 
“do not” before the verb “have”.

В отрицательном предложении 
добавляется «do not» перед глаголом 
«have».

Note: In the third - person singular 
(masculine, feminine and neuter), we add 
“does not” instead of “do not”.

Примечание: в 3-м лице ед. числа 
(мужского, женского и среднего рода) 
добавляется «does not» вместо «do 
not».

Conjugations of the verb “have” in 
negative form

Спряжение глагола «have» в 
отрицательной форме

I do not have У меня нет
You do not have У тебя нет
He does not have У него нет
She does not have У нее нет
It does not have Он/ она/ оно не имеет



We do not have У нас нет
You do not have У вас нет
They do not have У них нет
I do not have a grandfather У меня нет дедушки
You do not have a grandmother У вас нет бабушки
He does not have a grandson У него нет внука
She does not have a granddaughter У нее нет внучки
We do not have a sister У нас нет сестры
You do not have a brother У вас нет брата
They do not have a family У них нет семьи
The phrase “have got” Фраза «have got»
In British English, the following forms 
are also used:

В британском английском также 
используются следующие формы:

I have got У меня есть
(I have not got) I haven't got У меня нет
Have you got? У вас есть?
Note: “I have got”, “I haven’t got”, and 
“Have you got?” are the same as “I 
have”, “I do not have”, and “Do you 
have?” There is no difference in meaning.

Примечание: между фразами «I have 
got» («У меня есть»), «I haven’t got» 
(«У меня нет») и «Have you got?» («У 
вас есть?») и «I have», «I do not have», 
and «Do you have?» нет смысловой 
разницы.

I have got a camera.= I have a camera У меня есть камера.
I haven't got a husband = I do not have a 
husband

У меня нет мужа

Have you got a pencil? = Do you have a 
pencil?   

У вас есть карандаш?

Have you got any children? = Do you 
have any children?

У вас есть дети?

Has Doug got a car? = Does Doug have a 
car? 

У Дуга есть машина?

The words “some” and “any” Употребление «some» и «any»
The word “some” means “a small 
amount”. We use “some” before non-
count nouns, instead of “a” or “an”. 
In interrogative or negative sentences, we 
use “any” instead of “some”.

Слово «some» означает «небольшое 
количество» и употребляется перед 
неисчисляемыми существительными 
вместо «а» или «an». В 
вопросительных или отрицательных 
предложениях используется «any» 
(«любой») вместо «some».

I have some salt У меня есть немного соли.
Interrogative form Вопросительная форма
Do you have any salt? Есть ли у вас немного соли?
Negative form Отрицательная форма
You do not have any salt. У вас совсем нет соли.
Note: The words “some” and “any” can 
also be used with count nouns in plural 
form.

Примечание: «some» и «any» 
также могут быть употребляться с 
исчисляемыми существительными в 
форме множественного числа.



I have some friends in Los Angeles. У меня есть друзья в Лос-Анджелесе.
Do you have any friends in Los Angeles? Есть ли у вас друзья в Лос-Анджелесе?
I do not have any friends in Los Angeles. У меня нет друзей в Лос-Анджелесе.
There are some books on the shelf. На полке есть несколько книг.
There are some flowers in the vase. В вазе есть несколько цветов.
There are some biscuits in the box. В коробке есть немного печенья.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
I do not have a fork
I do not have a knife
I do not have a spoon
I do not have a plate
I do not have a cup
I have some money
I have some time
I have some soup
I have some food
I have some water
You have a boyfriend.
You have a girlfriend
You have a brother-in-law
You have a step mother
You have a mother-in-law
They do not have any postcards.
They do not have any diamonds
They do not have any tickets
They do not have any stamps
They do not have any hobbies
Do you have any butter?
Do you have any soap?
Do you have any rice?
Do you have any cheese?
Do you have any flour?

Lesson 12 Урок 12
Vocabulary Словарь
time время
eight восемь
o'clock часов
nine девять
half половина



past после
eleven одиннадцать
ten десять
quarter четверть
to к
twelve двенадцать
hand рука
little мало
get up вставать
morning утро
home дом
can мочь
help помогать
use использовать
lend одалживать
offer предлагать
cigarette сигарета
favor одолжение
pay платить
by по
check проверять
question вопрос
pupil ученик
a few несколько
exactly точно
about о
around приблизительно
nearly около
almost почти
please пожалуйста
borrow заимствовать
homework домашнее задание
afternoon после полудня
till до
evening вечер
The clock Часы
What's the time? Который час?
The time is eight o'clock. Время восемь часов.
You can also say...
It's eight o'clock Восемь часов.
It's nine o'clock Девять часов.
It's half past eleven Половина двенадцатого.
It's ten past six Десять минут седьмого.
It's (a) quarter past six Пятнадцать минут седьмого.
It's five to seven Без пяти семь.
It's a (quarter to twelve) Без пятнадцати двенадцать.



The big hand is on six and the little hand 
is on one

Большая стрелка находится на шести, 
а маленькая - на единице.

Note: Instead of saying “The time is nine 
o’clock,” you can say “It’s nine o’clock.” 
We indicate times that are exactly on 
the hour, by adding “o’clock” after the 
number.

Примечание: вместо «The time is 
nine o’clock.» («Время девять часов.») 
можно сказать: «It’s nine o’clock.» 
(«Девять часов.») 
Для обозначения времени полных 
часов добавляется «o’clock» («часов») 
после числа.

What time is it? Сколько времени?
Instead, you can say...
What's the time? Какое время?

It's eight o'clock. Восемь часов.
It's ten o'clock. Десять часов.
Here, we dropped the word “o’clock”, the 
reason is that the following do not indicate 
the exact hour, but with additional minutes

Если часы указываются неточно, 
«o’clock» отбрасывается.

It's ten past six Десять минут седьмого.
It's a quarter past five Пятнадцать минут шестого.
He gets up at six o'clock in the morning Он встает в шесть утра.
He eats breakfast at seven o'clock Он завтракает в семь.
He goes to school at eight o'clock Он идет в школу в восемь.
He goes home at one o'clock Он идет домой в час.
He eats lunch at half past one Он обедает в половине второго.
He does homework till quarter past four in 
the afternoon

Он делает домашнее задание до 
пятнадцати минут пятого после 
полудня.

He eats dinner at seven o'clock in the 
evening

Он ужинает в семь вечера.

He reads a book till nine o'clock Он читает книгу до девяти часов.
He goes to bed at half past ten at night Он ложится спать в половине 

одиннадцатого вечера.
What time does he get up in the morning? Во сколько он встает утром?
What time does he eat breakfast? Во сколько он завтракает?
What time does he go to school? Во сколько он идет в школу?
What time does he go to bed? Во сколько он ложиться спать?
The auxiliary verb “can” Вспомогательный глагол «can»
The verb “can” means “is able to”. Глагол «can» означает «мочь».
Conjugations of the verb “can” Спряжение глагола «can»
I can Я могу
You can Ты можешь
He can Он может
She can Она может
It can Он/ она/ оно может
We can Мы можем
You can Вы можете
They can Они могут



Note: In third-person singular form, we do 
not add an “s”.

Примечание: в 3-м лице ед. числа не 
добавляется «s».

I can help you Я могу вам помочь.
You can use my pen Вы можете воспользоваться моей 

ручкой.
He can lend you a book Он может одолжить вам книгу.
We make an interrogative sentence, by 
placing the word “can” before the subject, 
and without the auxiliary verb “do”.

Вопросительное предложение 
образуется путем постановки 
«can» перед подлежащим без 
вспомогательного глагола «do».

Can I offer you a cigarette? Могу ли я предложить вам сигарету?
Can you do me a favor? Можете ли вы сделать мне одолжение?
Can I pay by check? Могу ли я оплатить чеком?
We make a negative sentence, by using 
the word “cannot” instead of “can” and 
without the auxiliary verb “do”.

Отрицательное предложение 
образуется с помощью «cannot» 
вместо «can» без вспомогательного 
глагола «do».

I cannot answer your questions Я не могу ответить на ваши вопросы.
They cannot read English books Они не могут читать книги на 

английском.
The word “cannot” can be shortened to 
“can’t”.
For example: “I can’t drink wine.”

Слово «cannot» может быть 
сокращено до «can’t».
Например: «I can’t drink wine.» («Я не 
могу пить вино.»)

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
There are ten pupils in the room
There are twelve pupils in the room
There are thirteen pupils in the room
There are fifteen pupils in the room
There are a few pupils in the room
He goes to the restaurant at 8 o'clock
He goes to the garden at 8 o'clock
He goes to the zoo at 8 o'clock
He goes to the dentist at 8 o'clock
He goes to the bus stop at 8 o'clock
The time is exactly 4 o'clock
The time is about 4 o'clock
The time is around 4 o'clock
The time is nearly 4 o'clock
The time is almost 4 o'clock
I can help you
I can sing English songs
I can answer your questions
I can see the airplane
I can get up at six o'clock
Can I have a knife and a fork please?



Can I borrow your pen?
Can I have a piece of cake?
Can I go to bed?
Can I read your newspaper?

Lesson 13 Урок 13
Vocabulary Словарь
chocolate шоколад
color цвет
sky небо
blue голубой
red красный
grass трава
green зеленый
mouse мышь
grey серый
earth земля
Earth Земля (планета)
brown коричневый
moon луна
yellow желтый
black черный
sheet лист
white белый
pink розовый
purple пурпурный
hair волосы
tablecloth скатерть
cherry вишня
dark темный
light светлый
rainbow радуга
orange оранжевый
indigo индиго
violet фиолетовый
sea море
too тоже
favorite любимый
blond блондин/ блондинка
brunette брюнет/ брюнетка
American американский



flag флаг
pillow подушка
blanket одеяло
snow снег
grapefruit грейпфрут
lemon лимон
bird птица
Contractions Сокращения
In English, two words can sometimes 
be contracted into a single word, by 
dropping a letter (usually a vowel). 
The dropped letter is replaced by an 
apostrophe. 
For example, the word “don’t” is a 
contraction of “do not”.

В английском языке два слова иногда 
могут быть сокращены до одного путем 
отбрасывания буквы (обычно гласной), 
которая заменяется апострофом.  
Например, сокращением «do not» 
(«не») является «don’t». 

what is? = what's
that is = that's
it is = it's
who is = who's
where is = where's
here is = here's
have not = haven't
has not = hasn't
do not = don't
does not = doesn't
I am = I'm
you are = you're
he is = he's
she is = she's
we are = we're
you are = you're
they are = they're
The apostrophe (‘) indicates that a vowel 
is missing:

Апостроф (‹) указывает, что гласная 
отсутствует:

she is = she's
you are = you're
Examples Примеры
What's that? Что это?
It's a box. Это коробка.
It's a chair. Это стул.
It's a drawer. Это ящик.
Do you eat ice cream? Вы едите мороженое?
No ,I don't. Нет, я не ем.
Do you like chocolate? Вы любите шоколад?
No ,I don't. no need to translate
Does he drink beer? no need to translate
No ,he doesn't. no need to translate



Colors Цвета
The sky is blue Небо голубое.
The apple is red Яблоко красное.
The grass is green Трава зеленая.
The mouse is grey Мышь серая.
The earth is brown Земля коричневая.
The moon is yellow Луна желтая.
The hat is black Шляпа черная.
The sheet is white Лист белый.
The flower is pink Цветок розовый.
The shirt is violet Рубашка фиолетовая.
Questions and answers Вопросы и ответы
Is the sky red? Небо красное?
No, it isn't. Нет, оно не красное.
Is the grass green? Трава зеленая?
Yes, it is. Да, она зеленая.
Is your hair brown? Ваши волосы коричневые?
Yes, it is. Да, они коричневые.
Is your shirt pink? Ваша футболка розовая?
No, it isn't. Нет, она не розовая.
Is your hat dark red or light red? Ваша шляпа темно-красная или 

светло-красная?
It's dark red. Она темно-красная.
It's not light red. Она не светло-красная.
What are the colors of the rainbow? Какие цвета у радуги?
They are green, red, yellow, orange, blue, 
indigo, and violet.

Зеленый, красный, желтый, оранжевый, 
голубой, синий и фиолетовый.

What color is the sky? Какого цвета небо?
It's blue. Оно голубое.
And what color is the sea? А какого цвета море?
It's blue, too. Оно тоже голубое.
What color is the table? Какого цвета стол?
It's brown. Он коричневый.
What's your favorite color? Какой ваш любимый цвет?
It's blue. Голубой.
Is she blonde? Она блондинка?
No, she isn't. Нет, она не блондинка.
She is brunette. Она брюнетка.
Sentences Предложения
My scarf is purple Мой шарф фиолетовый
Your skirt is pink Ваша юбка розовая.
His tablecloth is white Его скатерть белая.
Her hat is grey Ее шляпа серая.
Our cherries are red Наши вишни красные.
Your trousers are green Ваши брюки зеленые.
Their shirts are blue Их рубашки синие.
Exercise Упражнение



Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
Is your skirt brown?
Is your skirt blue?
Is your skirt purple?
Is your skirt grey?
Is your skirt pink?
Her pillow is pink
Her sheet is white
Her blanket is green
Her dress is blue
Her hat is red
He has brown hair
He has black hair
He has grey hair
He has dark hair
He has blond hair
What color is the sky?
What color is the ball?
What color is the sea?
What color is the snow?
What color is the moon?
It is a blue sea
It is a yellow grapefruit
It is a green lemon
It is a red dress
It is a white beard

Lesson 14 Урок 14
Vocabulary Словарь
number число
century век
street улица
avenue авеню
floor этаж
row ряд
bus stop автобусная остановка
chapter глава
Sunday воскресенье
Monday понедельник
Tuesday вторник
Wednesday среда



Thursday четверг
Friday пятница
Saturday суббота
come приходить
before до
last последний
second второй
date дата
nineteenth девятнадцатый
twenty-second двадцать второй
twentieth двадцатый
eighteenth восемнадцатый
bird птица
cage клетка
thirty тридцать
village деревня
basket корзина
eleventh одиннадцатый
Ordinal numbers Порядковые числительные
first первый
second второй
third третий
fourth четвертый
fifth пятый
sixth шестой
seventh седьмой
eighth восьмой
ninth девятый
tenth десятый
Note: Ordinal numbers appear before the 
noun.

Примечание: порядковые 
числительные стоят перед 
существительным.

the first day первый день
the second week вторая неделя
the third number третий номер
the fourth year четвертый год
the fifth century пятый век
the sixth street шестая улица
the seventh avenue седьмая авеню
the eighth building восьмое здание
the ninth floor девятый этаж
the tenth row десятый ряд
Questions and answers Вопросы и ответы
Is this the first building? Это первое здание?
This is the first building. Это первое здание.
Is this the second question? Это второй вопрос?
This is the second question. Это второй вопрос.



Is this the first bus stop? Это первая автобусная остановка?
No, it isn't the first bus stop. Нет, это не первая автобусная 

остановка.
It's the second bus stop. Это вторая автобусная остановка.
Is this the third avenue? Это третья авеню?
No, it isn't the third avenue. Нет, это не третдья авеню.
It's the fifth avenue. Это пятая авеню.
Is it the fourth lesson? Это четвертый урок?
No ,it isn't the fourth lesson. Нет, это не четвертый урок.
It is the seventh lesson. Это седьмой урок.
Is this the first chapter? Это первая глава?
No, it isn't the first chapter. Нет, это не первая глава.

It is the last chapter. Это последняя глава.
The days of the week Дни недели
There are seven days in the week. В неделе семь дней.
What are the days of the week? Как называются дни недели?
The days of the week are: Дни недели называются:
Sunday воскресенье
Monday понедельник
Tuesday вторник
Wednesday среда
Thursday четверг
Friday пятница
Saturday суббота
The first day of the week is Sunday
The second day of the week is Monday
The third day of the week is Tuesday
The fourth day of the week is Wednesday
The fifth day of the week is Thursday
The sixth day of the week is Friday
The seventh day of the week is Saturday
Sunday comes before Monday Воскресенье предшествует 

понедельнику.
Friday comes after Thursday Пятница наступает после четверга.
What day is today? Какой сегодня день?
Today is Monday Сегодня понедельник.
Today is Friday Сегодня пятница.
Is Sunday the last day of the week? Воскресенье - последний день недели?
Is Saturday the sixth day of the week? Суббота - шестой день недели?
There are 365 days in a year. В году 365 дней.
There are four weeks in a month В месяце четыре недели.
There are twelve months in a year В году двенадцать месяцев.
There are twenty four hours in a day В сутках двадцать четыре часа.
There are sixty minutes in an hour В часе шестьдесят минут.
There are sixty seconds in a minute В минуте шестьдесят секунд.
The months of the year Месяцы года



The months of the year are: Месяцы года называются:
January январь
February февраль
March март
April апрель
May май
June июнь
July июль
August август
September сентябрь
October октябрь
November ноябрь
December декабрь
We use ordinal numbers for dates. Порядковые числительные 

используются для обозначения дат.
What's the date today? Какое сегодня число?
It's the nineteenth of March. Девятнадцатое марта.
It's the twenty second of July Двадцать второе июля.
It's the twentieth of August. Двадцатое августа.
It's the eighteenth of September. Восемнадцатое сентября.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
This is the second Avenue
This is the third of November
This is the fourth month of the year
This is the fifth number
This is the sixth day of the week
There are sixty minutes in the hour
There are four birds in the cage
There are thirty houses in the village
There are twenty chapters in the book
There are ten eggs in the basket
Sunday comes after Saturday
Monday comes after Sunday
Tuesday comes after Monday
Wednesday comes after Tuesday
Thursday comes after Wednesday
Is this the first book?
Is this the second newspaper?
Is this the third magazine?
Is this the fourth question?
Is this the fifth answer?
July is the seventh month in the year
August is the eighth month in the year
September is the ninth month in the year
October is the tenth month in the year



November is the eleventh month in the 
year

Lesson 15 Урок 15
Vocabulary Словарь
always всегда
generally в целом
never никогда
often часто
rarely редко
seldom нечасто
sometimes иногда
usually обычно
snow снег
detective детектив
know знать
listen слушать
news новости
library библиотека
believe верить
God Бог
sun солнце
rise вставать
east восток
live жить
understand понимать
handwriting почерк
need нуждаться
help помогать
me мне
belong принадлежать
work работать
same тот же самый
return возвращать
address адрес
explain объяснять
well хорошо
stay оставаться
act действовать
like нравиться
correct исправлять



mistake ошибка
spend проводить
vacation отпуск
opposite противоположный
Present Tense Настоящее время
In English, there are two main types of 
Present Tense: 
1. Present Simple
2. Present Progressive

В английском есть два основных типа 
настоящего времени:  
1. Настоящее неопределенное 
2. Настоящее длительное

Present Simple is used for general facts 
or routine actions.

Настоящее неопределенное время 
используется для выражения общих 
фактов или рутинных действий.

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
Present Simple

Спряжение глагола «walk» («гулять») в 
настоящем неопределенном времени

I walk Я гуляю
You walk Ты гуляешь
He walks Он гуляет
She walks Она гуляет
It walks Он, она, оно гуляет
We walk Мы гуляем
You walk Вы гуляете
They walk Они гуляют
Note: In the third-person singular (in 
all 3 genders: masculine, feminine and 
neuter), we add an “s”.

Примечание: в 3-м лице ед. числа 
(всех родов: мужского, женского и 
среднего) добавляется «s».

Present Simple is usually used with 
words that indicate routine:

Настоящее неопределенное время 
обычно используется с наречиями, 
выражающими порядок действий:

always всегда
generally как правило
never никогда
often часто
rarely редко
seldom нечасто
sometimes иногда
usually обычно
Examples Примеры
I always eat breakfast at 7 o'clock Я всегда завтракаю в 7 часов.
I generally drink tea with milk Я, как правило, пью чай с молоком.
It never snows in Hawaii На Гавайях никогда не идет снег.
She often reads detective stories Она часто читает детективы.
He rarely knows the answer Он редко знает ответ.
He seldom goes to the zoo Он нечасто ходит в зоопарк.
We sometimes listen to the news Мы иногда слушаем новости.
They usually go to the library Они обычно ходят в библиотеку.
Time phrases Временные фразы



Time phrases consisting of two or 
more words appear at the end of the 
sentence.

Временные фразы, состоящие из 
двух или более слов, ставятся в конце 
предложения.

every day каждый день
every week каждую неделю
every evening каждый вечер
in the morning утром
in the evening вечером
every year каждый год
Examples Примеры

We drink tea every evening Мы пьем чай каждый вечер.
I learn English every day Я учу английский каждый день.
We go to Paris every year Мы ездим в Париж каждый год.
He always does his homework in the 
afternoon

Он всегда делает домашнее задание 
во второй половине дня.

Additional sentences Дополнительные предложения
We believe in God Мы верим в Бога.
The sun rises in the east Солнце встает на востоке.
Does he always drink coffee in the 
morning?

Он всегда пьет кофе по утрам?

I don't know where he lives Я не знаю, где он живет.
I don't understand your handwriting Я не понимаю ваш почерк.
He doesn't need my help Ему не нужна моя помощь.
She doesn't believe me Она мне не верит.
We don't know whose pen this is Мы не знаем, чья это ручка.
These books don't belong to my sister Эти книги не принадлежат моей сестре.
Do you always go to work at the same 
time?

Вы всегда ходите на работу в одно и то 
же время?

Does he generally return home at five 
o'clock?

Он обычно возвращается домой в 
пять?

Does she know my address? Она знает мой адрес?
Does the teacher explain the chapter 
well?

Учитель хорошо объясняет главу?

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
She eats breakfast every day
She eats lunch every day
She eats dinner every day
She eats supper every day
She eats bread every day
He often acts like a little boy
He often corrects our mistakes
He often returns home at six o'clock.
He often spends his vacation in Paris
He often goes to bed early
He doesn't understand English



He doesn't understand his homework
He doesn't understand our children
He doesn't understand the question
He doesn't understand me
We do not sit opposite the tree
We do not sit in front of the tree
We do not sit behind the tree
We do not sit under the tree
We do not sit on the tree
He always does his homework in the 
afternoon
He always needs my help
He always uses pencils when he writes
He always does his work at 4 o'clock
He always listens to his parents

Lesson 16 Урок 16
Vocabulary Словарь
now сейчас
at present в настоящее время
at this moment в данный момент
laugh смеяться
him его
erase стирать
repeat повторять
sentence предложение
wait ждать
rain дождь
cut резать
put ставить
run бегать
stop останавливаться
swim плавать
admit допускать
close закрывать
move двигать
smile улыбаться
cinema кино
hold держать
copy копировать
go out выходить



exercise упражняться
study учиться
but но
piano пианино
violin скрипка
guitar гитара
flute флейта
organ орган
face лицо
head голова
leg нога
poem стихотворение
you вам, вас
her её, ей
us нам, нас
them им, их
Present Tense (continued) Настоящее время (продолжение)
Present Progressive is used to describe 
an action that is happening right now. In 
Present Progressive, we use the auxiliary 
verb “be” (am, is, are), followed by the 
main verb with the suffix “ing” added.

Настоящее длительное время 
употребляется для обозначения 
действия, которое происходит прямо 
сейчас, при помощи вспомогательного 
глагола «be» (am, is, are) и добавления 
суффикса «ing» к последующему 
основному глаголу.

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
Present Progressive

Спряжение глагола «walk» в 
настоящем длительном времени

I am walking Я гуляю
You are walking Ты гуляешь
He is walking Он гуляет
She is walking Она гуляет
It is walking Он/ она/ оно гуляет
We are walking Мы гуляем
You are walking Вы гуляете
They are walking Они гуляют
We sometimes add time phrases at the 
end of the sentence to indicate that the 
action is happening as we speak.

В конце предложения иногда 
добавляются временные фразы, 
указывая, что действие происходит в 
момент речи.

now сейчас
at present в настоящее время
today сегодня
at this moment в данный момент
at this minute в эту минуту
Examples Примеры
I am listening to music at this moment Я слушаю музыку в данный момент.
You are laughing at him Вы смеётесь над ним.
He is erasing the whiteboard now Он сейчас стирает с доски.



We are repeating the sentences Мы повторяем предложения.
They are waiting for you Они вас ждут.
It is raining now Сейчас идет дождь.
If a verb ends with the pattern consonant 
- stressed vowel - consonant, usually we 
double the consonant before adding the 
suffix “ -ing”.

Если глагол оканчивается на парную 
согласную - ударную гласную - 
согласную, то заключительная 
согласная обычно удваивается перед 
добавлением суффикса -ing.

sit – sitting сидеть
stop – stopping останавливаться
swim – swimming плавать
cut – cutting резать
put – putting ставить
run – running бежать
admit – admitting допускать
begin – beginning начинать
If a verb ends with the letter “e”, we drop 
the “e” before adding the suffix “ing”.

Если глагол оканчивается на букву 
«e», то она отбрасывается перед 
добавлением суффикса -ing.

smile – smiling улыбаться
take – taking брать
write – writing писать
close – closing закрывать
come – coming приходить
move – moving двигать
We make a negative sentence, by adding 
the word “not” between the auxiliary "to 
be" and the main verb.

Отрицательное предложение 
образуется путем добавления «not» 
между вспомогательным «to be» и 
основным глаголом.

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
negative form

Спряжение глагола «walk» в 
отрицательной форме

I am not walking Я не гуляю
You are not walking Ты не гуляешь
He is not walking Он не гуляет
She is not walking Она не гуляет
It is not walking Он/ она/ оно не гуляет
We are not walking Мы не гуляем
You are not walking Вы не гуляете
They are not walking Они не гуляют
Examples Примеры
I'm not singing today Я не пою сегодня.
You aren't going to the cinema Вы не идете в кино.
He isn't holding my hand Он не держит меня за руку.
She isn't copying the exercise Она не копирует упражнение.
It isn't raining now Сейчас не идет дождь.
We aren't closing the window Мы не закрываем окно.
They aren't opening the door Они не открывают дверь.



We make an interrogative sentence, by 
putting the auxiliary "to be" before the 
subject.

Вопросительное предложение 
образуется путем постановки 
вспомогательного глагола «to be» 
перед подлежащим.

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
interrogative form

Спряжение глагола «walk» в 
вопросительной форме

Am I walking? Я гуляю?
Are you walking? Ты гуляешь?
Is he walking? Он гуляет?
Is she walking? Она гуляет?
Is it walking? Он/ она/ оно гуляет?
Are we walking? Мы гуляем?
Are you walking? Вы гуляете?
Are they walking? Они гуляют?
Examples Примеры
Am I talking with Ms Simpson? Я говорю с госпожой Симпсон?
Are you reading a book? Вы читаете книгу?
Is he going out tonight? Он идет на вечеринку сегодня 

вечером?
Is she answering? Она отвечает?
Is it snowing? Идет снег?
Are we returning home? Мы возвращаемся домой?
Are they studying Russian? Они учат русский?
Let’s take a look at the differences 
between Present Simple and Present 
Progressive.

Рассмотрим различия между 
настоящим неопределенным и 
настоящим длительным временем.

I eat bread and butter every morning, but 
now I'm eating an egg

Я ем хлеб с маслом каждое утро, но 
сейчас я ем яйцо.

I go to school every day at 8 o'clock, but 
today I'm going to the park

Я хожу в школу каждый день в 8 часов, 
но сегодня я иду в парк.

He plays football every day, but now he is 
playing tennis 

Он играет в футбол каждый день, но 
сейчас он играет в теннис.

Dan usually reads a book, but now he is 
reading a newspaper

Дэн обычно читает книгу, но сейчас он 
читает газету.

Object pronouns Местоимения в объектном падеже
me мне, меня
you тебе, тебя
him его, ему
her ее, ей
it его, ее, ему
us нам, нас
you вам, вас
them их, им
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
He is playing the piano
He is playing the violin



He is playing the guitar
He is playing the flute
He is playing the organ
She is washing her face
She is washing her hands
She is washing her head
She is washing her fingers
She is washing her legs
Is she writing a letter?
Is she writing a story?
Is she writing a book?
Is she writing a song?
Is she writing a poem?
He is not waiting for you
He is not waiting for me
He is not waiting for her
He is not waiting for us
He is not waiting for them
Are you going to school?
Are you sleeping?
Are you singing?
Are you writing a letter?
Are you listening?

Lesson 17 Урок 17
Vocabulary Словарь
will будущее время «to be» 
phone телефон
tomorrow завтра
party вечеринка
type тип
soon скоро
be быть
back назад
next следующий
remain оставаться
elections выборы
take place происходить
forget забывать
catch ловить
wash мыть



dish блюдо
give давать
dictionary словарь
arrive прибывать
meet встречать
railway железная дорога
station железнодорожный вокзал
concert концерт
sign подписывать
rent сдавать в аренду
end конец
carry нести
holiday праздник
haircut стрижка
park парк
beach пляж
shave бриться
bath ванна
shower душ
shampoo шампунь
promise обещать
fare плата за проезд
fee плата
tax налог
debt долг
Future tense Будущее время
In Future Tense, we add "will", which is 
the future form of the auxiliary verb "to be

Будущее время образуется путем 
добавления «will», формы будущего 
времени вспомогательного глагола «to 
be», перед основным глаголом.

Conjugations of the verb “come” in Future 
Tense

Спряжение глагола «come» в будущем 
времени

I will come Я приду
You will come Ты придешь
He will come Он придет
She will come Она придет
It will come Он/ она/ оно придет
We will come Мы придем
You will come Вы придете
They will come Они придут
Examples Примеры
I will answer the phone Я отвечу на телефонный звонок.
You will come to the party tomorrow Вы придете на вечеринку завтра.
He will type the letter for you Он  напечатает письмо для вас.
She will be back soon Она скоро вернется.
We will learn English next week Мы будем изучать английский язык на 

следующей неделе.



They will remain at home today Они останутся дома сегодня.
The elections will take place next month Выборы пройдут в следующем месяце.
Future Tense – negative form Отрицательная форма будущего 

времени
We make a negative sentence, by adding 
the word “not” after the auxiliary verb 
“will”.

Отрицательное предложение 
образуется путем добавления «not» 
после вспомогательного глагола «will».

Conjugations of the verb “come” in 
negative form

Спряжение глагола «come» в 
отрицательной форме

I will not come Я не приду
You will not come Ты не придешь
He will not come Он не придет
She will not come Она не придет
It will not come Он/ она/ оно не придет
We will not come Мы не придем
You will not come Вы не придете
They will not come Они не придут
Examples Примеры
I will not forget your help Я не забуду вашей помощи.
You will not catch the ball Вы не поймаете мяч.
He will not wash the dishes today Он не будет мыть посуду сегодня.
She will not give you the dictionary Она не даст вам словарь.
We will not arrive at 10 o'clock Мы не прибудем в 10 часов.
They will not meet us at the railway 
station

Они не встретят нас на 
железнодорожном вокзале.

The concert will not begin at half past 
eight

Концерт не начнется в половине 
девятого.

Interrogative form Вопросительная форма
We make an interrogative sentence, by 
putting the auxiliary verb “will” before the 
subject.

Вопросительное предложение 
образуется путем постановки 
вспомогательного глагола «will» перед 
подлежащим.

Conjugations of the verb “come” in 
interrogative form

Спряжение глагола «come» в 
вопросительной форме

Will I come? Я приду?
Will you come? Ты придешь?
Will he come? Он придет?
Will she come? Она придет?
Will it come? Он/ она/ оно придет?
Will we come? Мы придем?
Will you come? Вы придете?
Will they come? Они придут?
Examples Примеры
Will I catch the bus? Я поймаю автобус?
Will you sign your name here? Вы подпишитесь своим именем здесь?
Will he pay your rent at the end of this 
week?

Он оплатит вашу арендную плату в 
конце этой недели?



Will you buy her a dress? Вы купите ей платье?
Will we help him to carry his basket? Мы поможем ему нести его корзину?
Will they have a holiday in France next 
year?

У них во Франции будет отпуск в 
следующем году?

Note: The word “I’ll” is the contracted 
form of “I will”, and the phrase “I won’t” is 
the contracted form of “I will not”. 
Same with “you’ll, he’ll, we’ll” and “you 
won’t, they won’t”, etc.

Примечание: «I’ll» – это сокращенная 
форма «I will» («я буду»), а фраза «I 
won’t» - сокращенная форма «I will 
not» 
 («я не буду»).
То же самое с «you’ll, he’ll, we’ll» и 
«you won’t, they won’t», и т.д.

I'll have a haircut tomorrow У меня завтра стрижка.
I won't forget your address Я не забуду ваш адрес.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
I will go to the cinema next week
I will go to the beach next week
I will go to the zoo next week
I will go to the park next week
I will go to the concert next week
I'll have a shave tomorrow
I'll have a haircut tomorrow
I'll have a bath tomorrow
I'll have a shower tomorrow
I'll have a shampoo tomorrow
I'll buy a ticket
I'll buy a ladder
I'll buy a hammer
I'll buy a flag
I'll buy a basket
I won't forget your help
I won't forget your question
I won't forget your promise
I won't forget your name
I won't forget your party
Will you pay your rent?
Will you pay your fare?
Will you pay your fee?
Will you pay your tax?
Will you pay your debt?

Lesson 18 Урок 18



Vocabulary Словарь
yesterday вчера
ago тому назад
send посылать
parcel посылка
weekend конец недели
visit посещать
Had (past of "have") имел, имела («have» в прошедшем 

времени)
test тест
climb взбираться
stair ступенька
arrive прибывать
pay платить
pass сдавать
examination экзамен
lock запирать
finish заканчивать
get off слезать
watch смотреть
television телевизор
lose терять
purse сумочка
shake трясти
bottle бутылка
break ломать
arm рука
repeat повторять
key ключ
ride ездить
enjoy наслаждаться
concert концерт
leave оставлять
alone в одиночестве
invite приглашать
party вечеринка
where где
was был, была, было
pleasant приятный
fine прекрасный
enjoyable доставляющий удовольствие
Past Simple Прошедшее неопределенное время
We use the Past Simple to describe 
things that happened sometime in 
the past. The Past Simple is usually 
accompanied by certain time words:

Прошедшее неопределенное время 
используется для выражения действий 
в прошлом и обычно сопровождается 
индикаторами времени:

yesterday вчера



last week на прошлой неделе
last month в прошлом месяце
last year в прошлом году
last night вчера вечером
ago тому назад
In Past Simple, we add the suffix “-ed” at 
the end of the base form of the verb.

В прошедшем неопределенном 
времени добавляется суффикс «-ed» в 
конце основной формы глагола.

arrive – arrived прибывать – прибыл
visit – visited посещать – посетил
pass – passed сдавать – сдал
climb – climbed взбираться – взобрался
If a verb ends with the letter “e”, we just 
add the letter “d”.

Если глагол оканчивается на «e», то 
добавляется только буква «d».

bake – baked печь - пек
invite – invited приглашать - пригласил
move – moved двигать - двигал
close – closed закрывать – закрыл 
If a verb ends with the letter “y”, and 
the “y” is preceded by a consonant, we 
change the letter “y” to the letter “i” and 
then add the suffix “ed”.

Если глагол оканчивается на букву 
«y» и ей предшествует согласная, то 
«y» меняется на «i» и добавляется 
суффикс «-ed».

copy – copied копировать - копировал
study – studied учить - учил
Note: If the letter “y” is preceded by a 
vowel, we simply add the suffix “ed”.

Примечание: если букве «y» 
предшествует гласная, то добавляется 
только суффикс «-ed».

play – played играть - играл
stay – stayed оставаться - остался
In most cases, if a verb ends with the 
pattern consonant-vowel-consonant, 
we double the final letter and then add 
the suffix “ed”.

В большинстве случаев, если глагол 
оканчивается на парную согласную-
гласную-согласную, последняя буква 
удваивается и прибавляется суффикс 
-ed.

stop – stopped останавливать - остановил
admit – admitted допускать - допустил
Irregular verbs Неправильные глаголы
In English, there are many verbs that are 
exceptions to the rules we’ve learned. We 
do not add the suffix “ed” to these words.

В английском языке существует 
множество глаголов-исключений из 
изученных правил. К этим словам 
суффикс -ed не прибавляется.

Examples of irregular verbs, in Present 
Tense and Past Simple

Примеры неправильных глаголов 
в настоящем и прошедшем 
неопределенном времени

be > was быть – был 
break > broke ломать – сломал 
bring > brought приносить – принес 
buy > bought покупать – купил 



catch > caught ловить – поймал 
come > came приходить – пришел 
cost > cost стоить – стоил 
cut > cut резать – резал 
can > could мочь – мог 
do > did делать – делал 
drink > drank пить – пил 
drive > drove водить – водил 
feel > felt чувствовать - чувствовал
forget > forgot забывать – забыл 
get > got получать – получил 
give -> gave давать – дал 
go > went идти – шел 
have >  had иметь – имел 
hear > heard слышать – слышал 
hold > held держать – держал 
keep > kept хранить – хранил 
know > knew знать – знал 
leave > left оставлять – оставил 
lend > lent одалживать – одолжил 
lose > lost терять – потерял
make > made совершать – совершил 
may > might быть вероятным - был вероятным 
meet > met встречать – встретил 
pay > paid платить – платил 
put > put ставить – ставил 
read > read читать – прочитал 
ride > rode ездить – ездил 
rise > rose подниматься - поднимался
run > ran бегать – бегал
see > saw видеть – видел 
send > sent отправлять – отправил 
shake > shook трясти – потряс
shut > shut затворять – затворил 
sit > sat сидеть – сел 
speak > spoke говорить – говорил
spend > spent проводить - провел
stand > stood стоять – стоял 
swim > swam плавать – плавал 
take > took брать – брал
teach > taught преподавать – преподавал 
tell > told рассказывать – рассказал 
wear > wore носить – носил 
Examples: Примеры:
He sent the parcel yesterday Он отправил посылку вчера.
She read a story last weekend Она прочитала рассказ в прошлые 

выходные.



We visited our uncle last month Мы посетили нашего дядю в прошлом 
месяце.

They had a test four days ago У них был тест четыре дня назад.
He climbed those stairs yesterday Он взобрался на ту лестницу вчера.
The airplane arrived in LA at 6 o'clock last 
night

Самолет прибыл в Лос-Анджелес в 6 
часов прошлой ночью.

He paid me 200 dollars last year Он заплатил мне 200 долларов в 
прошлом году.

Past Simple – negative form Отрицательная форма прошедшего 
неопределенного времени

We make a negative sentence, by adding 
the words “did not” before the verb, and 
then changing the verb to its base form.

Отрицательное предложение 
образуется путем добавления «did 
not» перед глаголом и изменения 
формы глагола на основную.

He passed his final examination Он сдал выпускной экзамен.
He did not pass his final examination Он не сдал выпускной экзамен.
Note: In the negative form, we drop the 
suffix “ed”.

Примечание: в отрицательной форме 
суффикс «-ed» отбрасывается.

Examples: Примеры:
He locked the door Он запер дверь.
He did not lock the door Он не запер дверь.
We did not finish our work Мы не закончили свою работу.
We did not get off the bus Мы не вышли из автобуса.
He did not watch television yesterday 
afternoon

Он не смотрел телевизор вчера днем.

She did not lose her purse Она не потеряла свою сумочку.
They did not shake the bottle Они не встряхнули бутылку.
He did not break his arm Он не сломал руку.
She did not repeat the questions Она не повторяла вопросы
Past Simple – interrogative form Вопросительная форма прошедшего 

неопределенного времени
We make an interrogative sentence, by 
putting the word “did” at the beginning of 
the sentence, and then changing the verb 
to its base form.

Вопросительное предложение 
образуется путем добавления «did» 
в начале предложения и изменения 
формы глагола на основную.

He lost his key. Он потерял ключ.

Did he lose his key? Он потерял ключ?
Examples Примеры
He rode his bicycle. Он ездил на велосипеде.
Did he ride his bicycle? Он ездил на велосипеде?
She enjoyed the concert. Ей понравился концерт.
Did she enjoy the concert? Ей понравился концерт?
He left me alone. Он оставил меня в покое.
Did he leave me alone? Он оставил меня в покое?
I finished my homework. Я закончил домашнюю работу.
Did I finish my homework? Я закончил домашнюю работу?
Did you sleep well last night? Ты хорошо спал прошлой ночью?



Did he invite you to the party? Он пригласил вас на вечеринку?
Did she clean the window? Она почистила окно?
You were here yesterday. Вы были здесь вчера.
Where were you at 7 o'clock this 
morning?

Где вы были сегодня в 7 утра?

I was at home. Я был дома.
Were you at home yesterday? Вы были дома вчера?
Yes I was. Да, я был дома.
The verb “be” in Past Simple Глагол «to be» в прошедшем 

неопределенном времени
I was Я был/ была
You were Ты был/ была
He was Он был
She was Она была
It was Он/ она/ оно был/ была/ было
We were Мы были
You were Вы были
They were Они были
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
I did not lose my key
I did not lose my purse
I did not lose my wallet
I did not lose my gloves
I did not lose my shoes
I studied English last night
I studied English last week
I studied English yesterday
I studied English on Sunday
I studied English two days ago
Did you finish your work?
Did you finish your breakfast?
Did you finish your coffee?
Did you finish your lessons?
Did you finish your newspaper?
Did you have a good holiday?
Did you have a pleasant holiday?
Did you have a fine holiday?
Did you have an interesting holiday?
Did you have an enjoyable holiday?
I did not go to bed
I did not go for a walk
I did not go to the park
I did not go home
I did not go to school



Lesson 19 Урок 19
Vocabulary Словарь
season время года
name название
spring весна
summer лето
autumn осень
winter зима
like подобно
rainy дождливый
sunny солнечный
bitterly горько
snowing идти (о снеге)
windy ветреный
humid влажный
a lot of много
a bit немного
cloudy облачный
pouring проливной (о дожде)
changeable изменчивый
throughout на всем протяжении
turn превращаться
very очень
rise восходить (о солнце)
set заходить (о солнце)
late поздно
clear чистый
damp влажный
stormy бурный
freeze замораживать
foggy туманный
awful ужасный
glorious славный
snowy снежный
mild умеренный
bright яркий
only только
thunder storm гроза
lightning молния
hard резкий



frost мороз
shower ливень
The weather Погода

How many seasons are there in a year? Сколько есть времён года?
There are four seasons in a year. Есть четыре времени года.
What are the names of the seasons? Как называются времена года?
They are: spring, summer, autumn, and 
winter.

Они называются: весна, лето, осень и 
зима.

What's the weather like in the spring? Какова погода весной?
It's warm in the spring. Весной тепло.
What's the weather like in the summer? Какова погода летом?
It's hot in the summer. Летом жарко.
What's the weather like in the autumn? Какова погода осенью?
It's cool in the autumn. Осенью прохладно.
What's the weather like in the winter? Какова погода зимой?
It's cold in the winter. Зимой холодно.
What's the weather like today? Какова погода сегодня?
It's rainy today. Сегодня дождливо.
It's sunny today. Сегодня солнечно.
It's bitterly cold today. Сегодня очень холодно.
Note: “What’s he like?” means “What 
does he look like?” or “What type of a 
person is he?”
“What’s the weather like?” means 
“What’s the weather?” or “How is the 
weather?”

Примечание: «What’s he like?» 
означает «Как он выглядит?» или 
«Какой он человек?»  
«What’s the weather like?» означает 
«Какая погода?» или «Как погода?»

Examples Примеры
It isn't snowing today Сегодня не идет снег.
It isn't windy today Сегодня не ветрено.
It isn't humid today Сегодня не влажно.
Which season do you like best? Какое время года вы любите больше 

всего?
I like winter best. Я больше всего люблю зиму.
What's your favorite season? Какое ваше любимое время года?
Spring is my favorite season. Мое любимое время года весна.
There are a lot of clouds today Сегодня облачно.
There was wind yesterday Вчера был ветер.
There are no clouds in the sky На небе нет облаков.
It's a bit cloudy but it's not raining Немного облачно, но дождя нет.
It's pouring rain Дождь льет как из ведра.
In Spain the weather is changeable 
throughout the year

В Испании погода изменчива в течение 
года.

In the winter the weather turns cool. It 
rains very often

Зимой становится прохладно. Очень 
часто идет дождь.

In the summer the sun rises early in the 
morning

Летом солнце восходит рано утром.



In the summer the sun sets late in the 
evening

Летом солнце заходит поздно вечером.

In the winter the days are short Зимой дни короткие.
In the winter the nights are long Зимой ночи длинные.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
It's cloudy today
It's cool today
It's clear today
It's damp today
It's raining today
It is stormy today
It is freezing today
It is foggy today
It is awful today
It is snowing today
It's a lovely day today
It's a glorious day today
It's a snowy day today
It's a sunny day today
It's a wet day today
Our weather is mild in spring
Our weather is pleasant in spring
Our weather is bright in spring
Our weather is fine in spring
Our weather is warm in spring

Lesson 20 Урок 20
Vocabulary Словарь
strong сильный
old старый
clever умный
pretty Симпатичный
rich богатый
dirty грязный
new новый
good хороший
bad плохой
small маленький
weak слабый
sweet сладкий



sour кислый
clean чистый
daily ежедневно
monthly ежемесячно
took взял
short короткий
dangerous опасный
wet влажный
road дорога
poor бедный
fat толстый
thin худой
stupid глупый
important важный
modern современный
ancient древний
fast быстрый
train поезд
slow медленный
excellent отличный
ugly уродливый
attractive привлекательный
friendly дружелюбный
beautiful красивый
deep глубокий
calm спокойный
shallow мелкий
nice хороший
The adjective Прилагательное
An adjective is a word that describes a 
noun.
Note: An adjective comes before the 
noun it describes.

Прилагательное – это слово, которое 
описывает существительное.
Примечание: прилагательное 
предшествует существительному, 
которое оно описывает.

The clever boy passed his final 
examination

Умный мальчик сдал выпускной 
экзамен.

The clever girl finished her homework Умная девочка выполнила домашнее 
задание.

The clever girls read a book yesterday Умные девочки прочитали книгу вчера.
The clever boys enjoyed the concert Умным мальчикам понравился концерт.
More examples Еще примеры
She is a pretty woman Она привлекательная женщина.
He is a rich man Он богатый человек.
We are strong men Мы сильные мужчины.
It is a long street Это длинная улица.
It is a dirty shirt Это грязная рубашка.
It is a new dress Это новое платье.



Questions and answers Вопросы и ответы
Is he a good boy? Он хороший мальчик?
No, he isn't. Нет, он не такой.
He is a bad boy Он плохой мальчик.
Is this a big house? Это большой дом?
No, it isn't. Нет, это не так.
It's a small house. Это маленький дом.
Are they strong men? Они сильные мужчины?
No, they aren't. Нет, они не такие.
They are weak men. Они слабые мужчины.
Is it a sweet orange? Это сладкий апельсин?
No, it isn't. Нет, это не так.
It is a sour orange. Это кислый апельсин.
Examples: Примеры:
It's a daily newspaper Это ежедневная газета.
It's a monthly magazine Это ежемесячный журнал.
It's a clean shirt Это чистая рубашка.
It's dangerous to walk on the wet road Опасно ходить по мокрой дороге.
He took a short vacation last week Он взял короткий отпуск на прошлой 

неделе.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
He is a rich man
He is a poor man
He is a fat man
He is a thin man
He is a stupid man
This is a large town
This is an important town
This is a modern town
This is an historical town
This is an ancient town
Is it a fast train?
Is it a slow train?
Is it a long train?
Is it a new train?
Is it a clean train?
She is an ugly secretary
She is an excellent secretary
She is an attractive secretary
She is a friendly secretary
She is a beautiful secretary
It is a calm lake
It is a deep lake
It is a clean lake
It is a shallow lake



It is a nice lake

Lesson 21 Урок 21
Vocabulary Словарь
than чем

cheap дешевый
quiet тихий
young молодой
airplane самолет
helicopter вертолет
furniture мебель
quarter квартал
class класс
hot горячий
sad печальный
wolf волк
fox лиса
south юг
north север
goods товары
market рынок
shop магазин
period период
decade десятилетие
problem задача
mathematics математика
safe безопасный
other другой
belt ремень
jewelry драгоценности
angry злой
early ранний
easy легкий
funny смешной
stone камень
slim тонкий
polite вежливый
brave храбрый
wise мудрый
cool прохладный
warm теплый



person человек
neighborhood соседство
lucky удачливый
The adjective (continued) Прилагательное (продолжение)
Comparative and superlative forms
In English, there are two forms of 
comparison:
1. Comparative-This form is used 
to compare between two nouns. We 
usually achieve comparative form by 
adding the suffix “-er” to the adjective, 
and separating the nouns with the word 
“than”.

Сравнительная и превосходная 
степень прилагательных 
В английском языке есть две степени 
сравнения:  
Сравнительная - используется для 
сравнения двух существительных и 
образуется добавлением суффикса 
-er к прилагательному и разделением 
существительных союзом «than».

1. Superlative-This form is used to 
compare between three or more nouns. 
We usually achieve superlative form by 
adding the suffix “-est” to the adjective, 
and adding the word “the” before the 
adjective.

Превосходная - используется 
для сравнения трех или более 
существительных и образуется 
добавлением суффикса -est к 
прилагательному и добавлением 
артикля «the» перед прилагательным.

cheap › cheaper › the cheapest дешевый – дешевле - самый дешевый
cold › colder › the coldest холодный - холоднее - самый холодный
high › higher › the highest высокий - выше - самый высокий
old › older › the oldest старый - старше - старейший
quiet › quieter › the quietest тихий – тише – самый тихий
short › shorter › the shortest короткий - короче - кратчайший
strong › stronger › the strongest сильный - сильнее - сильнейший
young › younger › the youngest молодой – моложе – самый молодой
Examples: Примеры:
An airplane is faster than a helicopter Самолет быстрее вертолета.
My uncle is older than my aunt Мой дядя старше моей тети.
He is younger than his sister Он моложе своей сестры.
Doug is stronger than Dan Дуг сильнее Дэна.
Where is furniture cheaper ,in Los 
Angeles or in New York?

Где мебель дешевле - в Лос-
Анджелесе или в Нью-Йорке?

Mount Everest is the highest mountain in 
the world

Эверест является самой высокой горой 
в мире.

February is the shortest month of the year Февраль - самый короткий месяц в 
году.

Which is the longest street in this 
quarter?

Какая самая длинная улица в этом 
квартале?

December is a cold month Декабрь - холодный месяц.
February is colder than December Февраль холоднее, чем декабрь.
January is the coldest month of the year Январь - самый холодный месяц в году.
Dan is a tall boy Дэн высокий мальчик.
Doug is taller than Dan Дуг выше Дэна.
Johnny is the tallest boy in the class Джонни - самый высокий мальчик в 

классе.



If an adjective is one syllable long and 
end with the pattern consonant - vowel 
- consonant, we double the last letter 
and then add the suffix “er” for the 
comparative form or the suffix “est” for 
the superlative form.

Если прилагательное односложное и 
заканчивается на парную согласную-
гласную-согласную, то последняя 
буква удваивается и затем добавляется 
суффикс -er для образования 
сравнительной степени или -est для 
образования превосходной степени.

big › bigger › the biggest большой - больше - самый большой
fat › fatter › the fattest толстый - толще - самый толстый
hot › hotter › the hottest горячий - горячее - самый горячий
sad › sadder › the saddest печальный – печальнее – самый 

печальный
thin › thinner › the thinnest тонкий - тоньше - самый тонкий
Examples Примеры
The wolf is bigger than the fox Волк больше, чем лиса.
He is fatter than his wife Он толще своей жены.
The south of the United States is hotter 
than the north

На юге Соединенных Штатов жарче, 
чем на севере.

He is sadder than his brother Он печальнее, чем его брат.
Emily is thinner than her brother Эмили более худая, чем ее брат.
The goods in the market are cheaper than 
the goods in the shops

Товары на рынке стоят дешевле, чем в 
магазинах.

Doug is a big boy Дуг большой мальчик.
Dan is bigger than Doug Дэн больше, чем Дуг.
Johnny is the biggest boy in the family Джонни - самый большой мальчик в 

семье.
It is one of the saddest periods in the 
decade

Это один из самых печальных 
периодов десятилетия.

It is the most difficult problem in 
Mathematics

Это самая сложная задача по 
математике.

She is a fat woman Она полная женщина.
His sister is fatter than her Его сестра полнее, чем она.
Emily is the fattest woman in the office Эмили – самая полная женщина в 

офисе.
If the adjective ends in “e”, this “e” becomes 
part of the suffixes er and est.

Если прилагательное заканчивается 
на «e», то эта буква входит в состав 
суффиксов -er and -est.

large › larger › the largest большой - больше – самый большой
nice › nicer › the nicest милый – милее – самый милый
safe › safer– the safest безопасный - безопаснее - самый 

безопасный
wide › wider › the widest широкий – шире -самый широкий
fine › finer › the finest прекрасный – прекраснее – самый 

прекрасный
Examples: Примеры:
The new bicycle is nicer than the old one Новый велосипед лучше, чем старый.
This apple is larger than the other one Это яблоко больше, чем другое.
My belt is wider than yours Мой ремень шире, чем ваш.



This is the finest jewelry in the store Это самые прекрасные ювелирные 
изделия в магазине.

Note: Instead of saying, “This apple is 
bigger than that apple,” we can simply 
say, “This apple is bigger than that one.”

Примечание: вместо того чтобы 
сказать: «This apple is bigger than that 
apple» («Это яблоко больше, чем то 
яблоко»), можно просто сказать: «This 
apple is bigger than that one» («Это 
яблоко больше, чем то»).

If an adjective ends with the letter “y”, 
which is preceded by a consonant, we 
replace the letter “y” with the letter “i”, and 
then add the suffix “er” or “est”.

Если прилагательное заканчивается 
на букву «y», которой предшествует 
согласная, то «у» заменяется буквой 
«i» и прибавляется суффикс -er или 
-est.

angry › angrier › the angriest злой – злее – самый злой
early › earlier › the earliest ранний - более ранний - самый ранний
easy › easier › the easiest легкий - легче - самый легкий
heavy › heavier › the heaviest тяжелый - тяжелее - самый тяжелый
ugly › uglier › the ugliest уродливый – уродливее - самый 

уродливый
funny › funnier › the funniest смешной – смешнее - самый смешной
Examples: Примеры:
This exercise is easier than the other one Это упражнение легче, чем другое.
This stone is heavier than that one Этот камень тяжелее, чем тот.
This dog is uglier than that one Эта собака уродливее, чем та.
He gets up earlier than his brother Он встает раньше своего брата.
He is angrier with me than with you. Он злее на меня, чем на вас.
The first lesson is an easy one Первый урок легкий.
The second lesson is easier than the first 
one

Второй урок легче первого.

The third lesson is the easiest lesson Третий урок самый легкий.
She is a pretty girl Она хорошенькая девушка.
She is prettier than Emily Она красивее Эмили.
She is the prettiest girl in our school Она самая красивая девушка в нашей 

школе.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
He is taller than his wife
He is slimmer than his wife
He is politer than his wife
He is braver than his wife
He is wiser than his wife
My shoes are cleaner than yours
My shoes are better than yours
My shoes are shorter than yours
My shoes are smaller than yours
My shoes are wetter than yours
It is cooler today
It is colder today



It is warmer today
It is hotter today
It is nicer today
He is the happiest in the neighborhood
He is the fastest in the neighborhood
He is the tallest in the neighborhood
He is the luckiest in the neighborhood
He is the finest in the neighborhood
Emily is tall but Ann is taller
Emily is strong but Ann is stronger
Emily is fat but Ann is fatter
Emily is happy but Ann is happier
Emily is young but Ann is younger

Lesson 22 Урок 22
Vocabulary Словарь
more больше
most наиболее
responsible ответственный
comfortable удобный
intelligent умный
interesting интересный
valuable ценный
documents документы
armchair кресло
fiancé жених
life жизнь
expensive дорогой
all все
album альбом
worse хуже
worst худший
better лучше
best лучший
less меньше
least наименее
much много
farther дальше
farthest дальний
memory память
mark оценка



boring скучный
fuel топливо
film фильм
university университет
economical экономический
efficient эффективный
confident уверенный
handsome статный
ambitious честолюбивый
sympathetic симпатический
painful болезненный
popular популярный
successful успешный
helpful полезный
motorcycle мотоцикл
The adjective (continued) Прилагательное (продолжение)
If an adjective has three or more 
syllables, we achieve the comparative by 
adding the word “more” or "less" before 
the adjective. We achieve the superlative 
by adding the phrase “the most” or "the 
least" before the adjective.

Если прилагательное трехсложное или 
многосложное, сравнительная степень 
образуется добавлением слова «more» 
(«более») или «less» («менее») перед 
прилагательным. Превосходная 
степень образуется добавлением «the 
most» («наиболее») или «the least» 
(«наименее») перед прилагательным.

beautiful › more beautiful › the most 
beautiful

красивый - красивее - самый красивый

responsible › more responsible › the most 
responsible

ответственный - ответственнее - самый 
ответственный

comfortable › more comfortable › the most 
comfortable

удобный – удобнее - самый удобный

dangerous › more dangerous › the most 
dangerous

опасный - опаснее - самый опасный

important › more important › the most 
important

важный - важнее - самый важный

intelligent › more intelligent › the most 
intelligent

умный - умнее - самый умный

interesting › more interesting › the most 
interesting

интересный – интереснее - самый 
интересный

valuable › more valuable › the most 
valuable

ценный - ценнее - самый ценный

Examples Примеры
This road is more dangerous Эта дорога более опасна.
These documents are more important 
than those

Эти документы важнее, чем те.

This armchair is more comfortable than 
that one

Это кресло удобнее, чем то.

This story is more interesting than the 
other one

Эта история интереснее, чем другая.



She is the most beautiful girl in the school Она самая красивая девушка в школе.
My fiancé is the most important person in 
my life

Мой жених является самым важным 
человеком в моей жизни.

He has an expensive hat У него есть дорогая шляпа.
My hat is more expensive than his Моя шляпа дороже, чем его.
I have the most expensive hat of all У меня самая дорогая шляпа из всех.
Irregular adjectives Неправильные прилагательные
bad › worse › the worst плохой - хуже – худший
good › better › the best хороший – лучше - лучший
little › less › the least маленький - меньше - наименьший
much › more › most большой - больше - наибольший
many › more › most много – больше - больше всего
far › farther › farthest далекий - дальше – самый дальний
Examples: Примеры:
I have a bad memory У меня плохая память.
You have a worse memory than I have У вас память хуже, чем у меня.
His memory is the worst in the university У него самая худшая память в 

университете.
I am a good typist Я хорошая машинистка.
Dan is a better typist than I Дэн лучший машинист, чем я
She is the best typist in the office Она лучшая машинистка в офисе.
The weather today is better than 
yesterday

Погода сегодня лучше, чем вчера.

Emily has the best marks of all У Эмили лучшие оценки из всех.
He is the most boring person in our office Он самый скучный человек в нашем 

офисе.
This car uses less fuel than that one Этот автомобиль расходует меньше 

топлива, чем тот.
This is the worst film this week Это худший фильм за неделю.
Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
My car is more beautiful than yours
My car is more economical than yours
My car is faster than yours
My car is wider than yours
My car is longer than yours
He is the most efficient person in our 
office
He is the most confident person in our 
office
He is the most handsome person in our 
office
He is the most ambitious person in our 
office
He is the most sympathetic person in our 
office
It is the most difficult problem



It is the most painful problem
It is the most important problem
It is the most interesting problem
It is the most ancient problem
She is more popular than her cousin
She is more successful than her cousin
She is more helpful than her cousin
She is more beautiful than her cousin
She is friendlier than her cousin
Which is faster, a bicycle or a motorcycle?
Which is faster, an airplane or a 
helicopter?
Which is faster, a car or a train?
Which is faster, a ship or a boat?
Which is faster, a bus or a horse?

Lesson 23 Урок 23
Vocabulary Словарь
match спичка
top верх
pair пара
bought купил
hitchhiker автостопщик
reach достигать
tail хвост
eagle орел
nest гнездо
poem стихотворение
abroad за границей
Japanese японский
birthday день рождения
strike забастовка
hostel общежитие
poetry поэзия
boss босс
rights права
show показывать
trip поездка
delay задержка
salary зарплата
mine мой, моя, моё, мои



yours твой, твоя, твоё, твои
his его
hers ее
its его, ее
ours наш, наша, наше, наши
theirs их
neighbor сосед
called позвонил
helmet шлем
clown клоун
crown корона
photograph фотография
towel полотенце
apricot абрикос
medicine медицина
florist флорист
Possessive form Притяжательная форма
We use the possessive form to indicate 
that one noun belongs to another 
noun.
There are two ways to express 
possession:
1. By adding the preposition “of” before 
the possessive noun.
2. By adding an apostrophe and the 
letter “s” (’s) at the end of the possessive 
noun. 

Притяжательная форма указывает, что 
одно существительное принадлежит 
другому.  
Есть два способа выражения владения: 
добавление предлога «of» перед 
притяжательным существительным; 
добавление апострофа и буквы 
«s» («’s») в конце притяжательного 
существительного.

Adding the preposition “of” before a noun Добавление предлога «of» перед 
существительным

the mother of the bride мать невесты
the top of the mountain вершина горы
the shoes of my father обувь моего отца
I bought a box of matches Я купил коробку спичек.
The soldiers climbed to the top of the 
mountain

Солдаты поднялись на вершину горы

I have two pairs of shoes У меня есть две пары обуви.
They locked the gates of the palace Они заперли ворота дворца.
The hitchhikers reached the end of the 
road

Автостопщики доехали до конца 
дороги.

Adding an apostrophe and the letter “s” 
(’s) at the end of the possessive noun. 
This possessive form is used with nouns 
representing live entities (people, 
names, animals, birds, etc).

Добавление апострофа и буквы 
«s» («’s») в конце притяжательного 
существительного.
Эта притяжательная форма 
употребляется с существительными, 
обозначающими живых существ 
(людей, имен, животных, птиц и т.д.).

The wife of Dan › Dan's wife



The secretary of my husband › my 
husband's secretary
The tail of the dog › the dog's tail
The nest of the bird › the bird's nest
The poems of Shakespeare › 
Shakespeare's poems
Examples Примеры:
Dan's wife is a teacher Жена Дэна учитель.
My husband's secretary is abroad Секретарь моего мужа за рубежом.
My friend's name is Dan Моего друга зовут Дэн.
Dan's car is Japanese У Дэна японский автомобиль.
Emily's brother works in London Брат Эмили работает в Лондоне.
What is Dan's favorite color? Какой у Дэна любимый цвет?
What is your teacher's name? Как зовут вашего учителя?
What is Emily's address? Какой у Эмили адрес?
When is your sister's birthday? Когда день рождения вашей сестры?
Where is Doug's book? Где книга Дуга?
Is this Mr. Lee's hat? Это шляпа господина Ли?
If a noun is in plural form and already 
has the letter “s” added to it, we simply 
add an apostrophe (‘) after the last letter.

Если существительное во 
множественном числе и уже 
имеет добавленную букву «s», то 
прибавляется апостроф (‘) после 
последней буквы.

The girls' names Имена девочек.
The miners' strike Забастовка шахтеров.
The students' hostel. Студенческое общежитие.
The boys' school Школа для мальчиков.
Similarly, if a noun is in singular form 
and ends with the letter “s”, we add an 
apostrophe (‘) after the last letter.

Аналогично, если существительное в 
единственном числе заканчивается на 
букву «s», то добавляется апостроф (‘) 
после последней буквы.

Keats' poetry Поэзия Китса.
Charles' daughter Дочь Чарльза.
Bess' brother Брат Бесса.
Mr. Lewis’ wife Жена г-на Льюиса.
The boss' car Автомобиль босса.
Note: If a noun is in plural form, but 
does not end with the letter “s”, we add 
both an apostrophe and the letter “s” 
(’s).

Примечание: если существительное 
во множественном числе, но не 
оканчивается на букву «s», то 
добавляется и апостроф (‘), и буква «s» 
(’s).

The men's room Мужской туалет.
The children's bedroom Детская спальня.
Women's rights Права женщин.
The same rules apply to expressions of 
time: We add an apostrophe (‘) or both an 
apostrophe and the letter “s” (’s).

То же правило применяется к 
выражениям времени. Добавляется 
апостроф (') или апостроф и буква «s» 
(’s).



This evening's show Шоу сегодня вечером.
A day's trip Однодневная поездка.
A two hours' delay Задержка на два часа.
A ten minutes' walk Десятиминутная прогулка.
A month's salary Месячная зарплата.
A day's rest Остаток дня.
Note: The following forms are also 
acceptable:
“A ten minute walk”
“A two hour delay”

Примечание: следующие формы 
также являются приемлемыми:
«A ten minute walk»
«A two hour delay»

A week's holiday Недельный праздник.
A winter's day Зимний день
In compound nouns (nouns formed by 
combining multiple words), we add an 
apostrophe and the letter “s” (’s) after the 
last part of the noun.

В сложных существительных 
(образованных объединением 
нескольких слов) добавляется 
апостроф и буква «s» (’s) после 
последней части существительного.

My girl friend's parents Родители моей подруги.
The policeman's house Дом полицейского.
Sometimes, we can leave out the noun 
that is possessed.

Иногда можно опустить обладаемое 
существительное.

at the butcher's shop > at the butcher's
at the dentist's surgery > at the dentist's
I am going to the dentist's Я собираюсь к стоматологу.
The grocer's is between the baker's and 
the butcher's

Продовольственный магазин находится 
между булочной и мясной лавкой.

My hat is nicer than Dan's Моя шляпа лучше, чем у Дэна.
Possessive pronouns Притяжательные местоимения
We can use a possessive pronoun 
instead of a possessive adjective with a 
noun.

Притяжательное местоимение 
может заменить притяжательное 
прилагательное с существительным.

mine мой, моя, моё, мои
yours твой, твоя, твоё, твои
his его
hers её
its его, её
ours наш, наша, наше, наши
yours ваш, ваша, ваше, ваши
theirs их
Note: The word “his” can be either a 
possessive pronoun, or a possessive 
adjective.

Примечание: «his» может быть как 
притяжательным местоимением, так и 
притяжательным прилагательным.

Is that Emily's pen? Это ручка Эмили?
No, hers is on the table. Нет, ее ручка на столе.
Note: In this sentence, the possessive 
pronoun “hers” is used instead of “her 
pen”.

Примечание: в этом предложении 
притяжательное местоимение «hers» 
заменяет “ее ручка”.

Is this his book? Это его книга?



No, his is in the drawer. Нет, его книга в ящике.
Are these your tickets? Это ваши билеты?
Those are ours. Это наши билеты.
Is this bag yours? Это ваша сумка?
Yes, it is mine. Да, она моя.
They are neighbors of yours. Они ваши соседи.
She is a friend of ours. Она наша подруга.
Does the car belong to your brothers? Машина принадлежит вашим братьям?
Yes, it is theirs. Да, она моих братьев.
Note: In this sentence, the possessive 
pronoun “theirs” is used instead of “my 
brothers’”. 

Примечание: в этом предложении 
притяжательное местоимение «theirs» 
заменяет «my brothers’” («моих 
братьев»).

Exercise Упражнение
Let’s read out loud. Прочитайте вслух. 
Dan's sister lives in Japan
Dan's sister is Japanese
Dan's sister is called Emily
Dan's sister teaches Spanish
Dan's sister is playing the violin
Emily is a girl's name
Emily is Dan's sister
Emily is the president's wife
Emily is my brother's daughter
Emily is a friend of mine
Is it the policeman's helmet?
Is it the clown's hat?
Is it the queen's crown?
Is it the pianist's piano?
Is it the boy's photograph?
Whose towel is this? It is ours
Whose typewriter is this? It is yours
Whose umbrella is this? It is mine
Whose shop is this? It is his
Whose hat is this? It is theirs
I buy meat at the butcher's
I buy cheese at the grocer's
I buy apricots at the greengrocer's
I buy medicines at the chemist's
I buy flowers at the florist's
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Vocabulary Словарь
located расположенный
middle средний
population население
million миллион
area область
square площадь
official официальный
language язык
capital столица
main основной
chief главный
port порт
surrounded окруженный
border граница
coastline береговая линия
west запад
gulf морской залив
distance расстояние
consists of состоит из
point точка
centre центр
horizontal горизонтальный
stripe полоса
background фон
difficult трудный
French французский
fluently бегло
quite довольно
as well также
native language родной язык
accent акцент
occasionally изредка
grammar грамматика
trouble трудность
spelling правописание
pronunciation произношение
extremely чрезвычайно
Questions and answers Вопросы и ответы
Do you speak English? Вы говорите по-английски?
Yes I do. Да, я говорю.
Is English a difficult language? Английский – трудный язык?
No ,it isn't. It is an easy language. Нет, он не трудный. Он простой язык.
What other languages do you speak? На каких других языках вы говорите?
I speak Arabic and French fluently,  
and I understand some Spanish as well.

Я бегло говорю на арабском и 
французском языках, а также немного 
понимаю испанский.



Does your wife speak English too? Ваша жена тоже говорит по-английски?
Yes ,she speaks English quite well. Да, она говорит по-английски очень 

хорошо.
What's your wife's native language? Какой у вашей жены родной язык?
Her native language is Spanish. Ее родной язык испанский.
What's your daughter's name? Как зовут вашу дочь?
Her name is Emily. Ее зовут Эмили.
Does she speak English? Она говорит по-английски?
Yes ,she does ,but with a Spanish accent. Да, говорит, но с испанским акцентом.
Does she make mistakes? Она делает ошибки?
Yes, occasionally, in English grammar. Да, изредка в английской грамматике.
Who are these children? Кто эти дети?
They are my nephew and my niece. Они мой племянник и моя племянница.
Does your nephew speak English? Ваш племянник говорит по-английски?
Yes ,but he has a lot of trouble with  
his spelling.

Да, но у него большие трудности с 
написанием.

And what about your niece? А как насчет вашей племянницы?
She has no trouble with the pronunciation. У нее нет проблем с произношением.
Her English is extremely good. Ее английский очень хорош.


